Public Document Pack

PLANS PANEL (EAST)

Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on
Thursday, 14th January, 2010

at 1.30 pm
MEMBERSHIP
Councillors
D Congreve A Taylor G Latty (Chair) R Finnigan
P Gruen D Wilson J Marjoram
M Lyons P Wadsworth
K Parker
Agenda compiled by: Angela Bloor
Governance Services 247 4754
Civic Hall

Produced on Recycled Paper



AGENDA

Item Ward Item Not Page
No Open No
1 APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION

OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with

Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information

Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the

press and public will be excluded.)

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written

notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief

Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours

before the meeting)

2 EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1 To highlight reports or appendices which
officers have identified as containing exempt
information, and where officers consider that
the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information, for the reasons
outlined in the report.

2 To consider whether or not to accept the
officers recommendation in respect of the
above information.

3 If so, to formally pass the following
resolution:-

RESOLVED - That the press and public be
excluded from the meeting during
consideration of those parts of the agenda
designated as containing exempt
information on the grounds that it is likely, in
view of the nature of the business to be
transacted or the nature of the proceedings,
that if members of the press and public were
present there would be disclosure to them of
exempt information.

3 LATE ITEMS



Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

Harewood;

Morley South;

To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration.

(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes.)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for
the purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of
the Members Code of Conduct.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

MINUTES

To approve the minutes of the Plans Panel East
meeting held on 10" December 2009

(minutes attached)

APPLICATION 09/00541/FU - REAR OF BRYN,
WINTON HOUSE AND TOWERHURST, THE
AVENUE COLLINGHAM LS22

Further to minute 129 of the Plans Panel East
meeting held on 10" December 2009 where Panel
resolved to defer consideration of the application to
enable a site visit to take place, to consider a
report of the Chief Planning Officer on an outline
application to erect three detached houses

(report attached)

APPLICATION 09/01462/FU - PEEL STREET/
MELBOURNE STREET MORLEY LS27

Further to minute 136 of the Plans Panel East
meeting held on 10" December 2009 where Panel
resolved to defer consideration of the application
for additional information and a site visit, to

C

15 -
26

27 -
44



Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

10

11

Kippax and
Methley;

Harewood;

Temple
Newsam,;

consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer on
an application for the variation of condition 22,
laying out of car parking area of application
07/03669/FU

Please note that clearer images of the
photographic survey are being e-mailed separately
to Members and better quality copies of the
attached images will be available at the meeting

(report attached)

APPLICATION 09/02871/FU - CHURCHSIDE
VILLAS METHLEY LS26

Further to minute 124 of the Plans Panel East
meeting held on 10" December 2009 where Panel
resolved to defer consideration of the application to
enable a site visit to take place, to consider a
report of the Chief Planning Officer on an
application for a change of use and alterations of
former joiners shop to form one 4 bedroom
dwelling house

(report attached)

APPLICATION 09/04229/FU - OAKTREE HOUSE
9 BLACKMOOR LANE LS17

To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for a single storey rear extension
and enlarged balcony with covered area to rear

(report attached)

APPLICATION 09/04286/FU - 164 RING ROAD
HALTON LS15

To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for a part two single storey rear
extension and part two storey side extension

(report attached)

45 -
56

57 -
62

63 -
70



Item Ward Item Not Page
No Open No
12 Harewood; APPLICATION 09/04313/FU - HOLLY CROFT 71 -
SANDHILLS THORNER LS14 80
To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for a detached stable block/hay
store and ménage to rear of dwelling
(report attached)
13 Harewood; APPLICATION 09/04522/FU - WARREN HOUSE | 81 -
THE RIDGE LINTON LS22 90
To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for a replacement detached five
bedroom dwelling
(report attached)
14 Gipton and APPLICATION 09/05236/LA - EASTERLEY 91 -
Harehills; MOUNT GIPTON 100
To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for a residential development
comprising 39 houses, 2 two bedroom flats over
garages and 12 two bedroom flats in 1 three storey
block
(report attached)
15 Gipton and APPLICATION 09/05235/LA - ST WILFRIDS 101 -
Harehills; AVENUE HAREHILLS 106

To consider a report of the Chief Planning Officer
on an application for 10 three bedroom semi-
detached houses

(report attached)




Item
No

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No

16

17

All Wards;

NATURAL RESOURCES AND WASTE
DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENT POLICY
POSITION REPORT (PREFERRED OPTIONS)

To consider and comment upon a report of the
Chief Planning Officer on the Natural Resources
and Waste Development Plan Document Policy
Position Report (Preferred Options) which was
released by the Council’s Development Plan Panel
as the basis for informal public consultation
commencing on 18" January 2010

(report attached)

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday 11" February 2010 at 1.30pm

107 -
110



Agenda Annex

-—emw CITY COUNCIL

Chief Executive’s Department
Governance Services

To all Members of Plans Panel . 4™ Floor West
(East) gnd relevant Town and Parish Civic Hall
Councils

Dear Councillor

Leeds LS1 1UR

Contact: Angela M Bloor
Tel: 0113 247 4754

Fax: 0113 395 1599
angela.bloor@leeds.gov.uk
Your reference:

Our reference: ppe site visits
Date 6" January 2010

SITE VISITS — PLANS PANEL EAST - 14™ JANUARY 2010

Prior to the meeting of the Plans Panel (East) on Thursday 14" January 2010 the following

site visits will take place:

9.00am
9.20am  Morley
South

9.50am  Kippax &
Methley

10.35am Harewood

11.00am Harewood

11.25am Harewood

12.00
noon
approx

www.leeds.gov.uk

Depart Civic Hall

Variation of condition 22 — laying out of car parking area of
application 07/03669/FU — Peel Street/Melbourne Street Morley
LS27 — 09/01462/FU

Change of use and alterations of former joiners shop to form one 4
bedroom dwelling house — Churchside Villas Methley LS26 —
09/02871/FU

Oaktree House 9 Blackmoor Lane LS17 — Single storey extension
and enlarged balcony with covered area to rear — 09/04229/FU

Outline application to erect 3 detached houses rear of Bryn,
Winton House and Towerhurst The Avenue Collingham LS22 —
09/00541/FU

Replacement detached 5 bedroom dwelling — Warren House The
Ridge Linton LS22 — 09/04522/FU

Return to Civic Hall

ST

A
N\
)
/
)]
/_LL’

<
A\ %

General enquiries : 0113 222 4444

455
=<

£4

e 2

P ag e 1 INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



For those Members requiring transport, a minibus will leave the Civic Hall at 9.00am.
Please notify David Newbury (Tel: 247 8056) if you wish to take advantage of this and meet

in the Ante Chamber at 8.55am.

Please note that after agenda item 16 there will be a pre-application presentation on
proposals for a new West Yorkshire Police Headquarters building at the former Greyhound

Stadium site, Elland Road LS11.

Yours sincerely

Angela M Bloor
Governance Officer

www.leeds.gov.uk

General enquiries : 0113 222 4444

Page 2

A
N\
N\
|
v
4

<
224

Lo

LESS
o2
=<

»
R

e 2

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE



Agenda ltem 6

Plans Panel (East)
Thursday, 10th December, 2009
PRESENT: Councillor G Latty in the Chair

Councillors D Congreve, R Finnigan,
P Gruen, M Lyons, J Marjoram, K Parker,
P Wadsworth and D Wilson

120 Chair's opening remarks
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked Members and
Officers to introduce themselves

121 Declarations of Interest

The following Members declared personal/prejudicial interests for the purpose
of Section 81(3) of the Local Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the
Members Code of Conduct

Application 09/03181/FU — Wellfield House Victoria Road Churwell
Morley LS27 — Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest as a Member of
Morley Town Council which will have been consulted on the proposals (minute 127
refers)

Application 09/03813/FU — Cockburn College of Arts Gipsy Lane LS11 —
Councillor Congreve declared a personal interest through being a Governor at the
school (minute 131 refers)

Application 09/01462/FU — Peel Street/Melbourne Street Morley LS27 —
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest as a member of Morley Town
Council which had objected to the application (minute 136 refers)

122 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Taylor

123 Minutes
RESOLVED - To approve the minutes of the Plans Panel East meeting held
on 19" November 2009

124 Request for a site visit

Councillor Parker requested that agenda item 9, application 09/02871/FU —
Change of use and alterations of former joiners shop to form one 4 bedroom dwelling
house with attached car port with 2 car parking spaces at Churchside Villas Methley,
be deferred to enable a site visit to take place prior to the next meeting on the
grounds of concerns relating to on-street parking and impact on residential amenity

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 3



RESOLVED - To defer consideration of the application to enable a site visit
to take place

125 Request to withdraw an item from the agenda

The Panel’s Lead Officer requested that the report relating to application
09/04265/FU — 12 Church Lane Swillington LS26 be withdrawn from the agenda to
enable some highways issues which had recently come to light, to be considered.
The Panel’s Lead Officer also requested that if the highways issues could not be
resolved then the recommendation be changed to a refusal of the application with
this decision being deferred and delegated to the Chief Planning Officer

RESOLVED- That consideration of the report be deferred and that the
application be dealt with as suggested by Officers

126 Application 09/03527/FU - Amendment to previous approval 32/0352/FU
- alterations and addition of roof lights and replacement of 1st floor window
with emergency escape hatch (2m high fence to side Permitted Development) -
22 Barrowby Lane Austhorpe LS15

Further to minutes 116 and 117 of the Plans Panel East meeting held on 19"
November 2009 where Panel deferred the application to enable further discussions
with all parties, the Panel considered a further report

Officers presented the report and outlined the amendments which had now
been made to the application which would overcome the overlooking issues to the
satisfaction of all affected parties

RESOLVED - To approve the application in principle and to defer and
delegate final approval of the application to the Chief Planning Officer subject to
signing of a Section 106 agreement to ensure that the previously approved
permissions in respect of two central roof light and first floor window to the side
elevation cannot be reinstated and that the window and roof lights shown to be
removed on the layout plan are removed and subject to the conditions set out in the
submitted report

127 Application 09/03181/FU - Demolition of single storey extension and
erection of two storey extension with glazed link and basement with additional
car parking to offices at Wellfield House Victoria Road Churwell Morley LS27

Plans, drawings, graphics and photographs were displayed at the meeting. A
site visit had taken place earlier in the day which some Members had attended

Officers presented the report which proposed the demolition of an existing
glazed single storey extension and sought permission for a replacement two storey
extension and additional car parking to offices at Wellfield House, Victoria Road,
Churwell Morley LS27

Members were informed of an amendment to the report to state that 55 car
parking spaces would be provided and not 51

The new extension would be in a contemporary design with materials
comprising glazing, zinc and granite together with stone cladding columns to tie in
with the host property which was a Georgian/Victorian stone villa surrounded by
trees, some of which were protected

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 4



Members were provided with images showing summer and winter sun-path
diagrams and whilst there would be some overshadowing of neighbouring properties
in winter, there would be little impact during the summer months. The extension
had also been designed with a set back at the first floor to further reduce its impact
on residences at Laneside Gardens and the internal layout of the rooms would be
arranged to minimise the impact of the development on residential amenity

The proposals aimed for a BREEAM ‘excellent’ rating

Members’ attention was drawn to the principle of development and whilst the
site was not in the town centre it was an existing office development; the proposals
would provide for the retention of a local firm which employed locally and offered the
opportunity for the creation of a further 50 jobs. In view of this, Officers had taken a
pragmatic approach and were satisfied with the principle of development

Officers reported the receipt of two further letters of objection

If minded to approve the application Officers requested additional conditions
be considered relating to highways and the provision of obscure glazing on the south
and west boundary

The Panel heard representations from the applicant’s agent and an objector
who attended the meeting

Members discussed the following matters:

e the possibility of noise and light pollution and the need for this to be
addressed

e the use of granite in the scheme with some views that this should be
replaced with stone

e the hours of use of the premises, with some concerns being raised at
the requirement for a 10pm finish; that this was not specified in the
submitted report and that the hours of use should be restricted to 10pm
for one year to ascertain the impact of this on local residents

e that the organisation had operated on the site for many years and had
been reasonable and conscientious

¢ the need to include conditions to mitigate noise and light pollution

e the provision of obscure glazing and to require best endeavours to be
used to employ local people including during the construction process

To address the concerns regarding the hours of use, the Head of Planning
Services suggested that a condition could be imposed restricting later use to certain
parts of the building and car parking area

Relating to the proposed materials and the mixed views of the Panel on
this, Members noted the agent’s comments that he was willing to consider increased
stone elements alongside the granite

RESOLVED - To approve the application in principle and to defer and
delegate final approval to the Chief Planning Officer subject to the conditions set out
in the submitted report; additional conditions relating to provision of:

e visibility splay
obscure glazing to first floor windows on south and west elevation
method statement for construction
method statement to mitigate against noise and light pollution
best endeavours to secure local employment
hours of use for part of parking area and part of offices
stone to be used as the material for the base building, not slate

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 5



and the completion of a legal agreement within 3 months from the date of resolution
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Chief Planning Officer, to include the
following obligation; travel plan monitoring fee (£2500)

128 Application 09/02779/FU - 1 detached three bedroom dwelling house
with attached single garage to garden site - 36 Fearnville Mount Roundhay LS8

Further to minute 113 of the Plans Panel East meeting held on 19" November
where Panel resolved not to accept the Officer's recommendation to refuse an
application for a detached dwelling house with garage to garden site at 36 Fearnville
Mount LS8, Members considered a report setting out possible conditions to be
attached to an approval

RESOLVED - That the application be granted subject to the conditions set
out in the submitted report

129 Application 09/00541/OT - Outline application to erect three detached
houses at the rear of Bryn, Winton House and Towerhurst The Avenue
Collingham LS22

Plans, photographs and drawings were displayed at the meeting

Members considered a report on an application for the erection of three
detached houses at the rear of properties known as Bryn, Winton House and
Towerhurst on The Avenue Collingham LS22

Officers presented the report and stated that refusal of the application was
being recommended to Panel as the proposals did not improve the quality or
character of the area and did not accord with policy

Members heard representations from the applicants’ agent and an objector
who attended the meeting

Members commented on the following matters:

e that a similar development higher up the street had been erected and
why on some occasions Officers were of the view that existing
developments did affect proposed schemes and sometimes they did
not

e the comments made by the applicant’s agent that he had been advised
that a recommendation to approve the application had been placed on
the report, with this being altered following the Chair’s briefing meeting

The Panel was advised that due to changes in planning legislation,
greater emphasis was now placed on the character of areas and through PPS1 and
PPS3, Local Planning Authorities were able to better control this aspect. In the case
of the three properties which were sited to the rear of Low Garth, Oakroyd and
Birkby, these were likely to have obtained planning permission prior to the increased
emphasis on the character of an area

Regarding the statements made by the applicant’s agent on an
amendment to the report’s recommendation, the Chair stated that the Chair’s briefing
meeting considered applications which were to come to Panel and occasionally an
application was recommended to be examined further in a Senior Officer Review;
this application was one such case

The Head of Planning Services reiterated these points and stated that for this
application the key issue turned on the impact of the application on the character of
the area and after further consideration Officers were of the view that the correct

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 6



recommendation had been brought to Panel for Members’ consideration and
determination

Members discussed the importance of Officers not indicating to applicants,
agents etc a possible recommendation on an application when the final decision did
not rest with them

A site visit was then proposed by Councillor Wilson to enable a more informed
judgement to be made on the issues connected with the site

RESOLVED - That determination of the application be deferred to the next
meeting to enable a site visit to be undertaken

130 Application 09/04153/FU - Proposed newspaper storage building at The
British Library Wighill Lane Walton Wetherby LS22
Plans, drawings, graphics and sample materials were displayed at the
meeting. A site visit had taken place earlier in the day which some Members had
attended
Officers presented the report which sought permission for a newspaper
storage building at the British Library, Wighill Lane Walton LS22, which would
provide facilities to relocate and store the stock of printed information which was
currently inadequately housed in premises in London. Two informal pre-application
presentations on the proposals had been made to Plans Panel East earlier in the
year
Members were informed that following criticisms that the recently constructed
Automated Storage Building (ASB) was visually bland and uniform, more articulation
was proposed on the elevations of the newspaper storage building through the use
of random panelling in shades of grey
A visual impact assessment of the proposals had been carried out with
Officers presenting the ‘worse case scenario’ images for Members’ consideration
Officers reported the receipt of a further letter of objection and further
comments from Boston Spa Parish Council which echoed those made by Walton
Parish Council that a simpler single colour finish to the building might be more
appropriate
Panel was also informed of Walton Parish Council’s concerns at the proposed
access route for construction traffic and vehicles delivering documents through the
ingest period and its impact on the village, with the Parish Council proposing an
alternative route
Officers referred to the proposed conditions set out in the submitted report
and stated that condition 2 should read 08.00 to 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and
condition 8 should be amended to include ‘printed material’ rather than newspapers
Following the submission of revised plans and additional information, if
minded to approve the application, additional conditions were recommended in
respect of:
e protection of trees
e construction traffic
e provision of detailed design of the swale and construction access
including details of the retaining wall
e submission of utilities routing to avoid tree routes
e final heights of the building to match those of the site cross section
drawings Reference LEO A(00)10 Rev 3
Members heard representations on behalf of the applicant and from

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 7



Councillor John Procter who whilst not wishing to oppose the application raised
concerns relating to the visual impact of the building and the traffic route proposed
by the applicant

Members commented on the issues which had been raised relating to
possible glare from the building, particularly in sunlight, the cladding materials; their
colour and the most appropriate route for construction traffic and delivery vehicles
during the ingest period

RESOLVED - To defer and delegate the application for approval by the Chief
Planning Officer subject to the conditions set out in the submitted report, subject to
the amendments to conditions 2 and 8, further conditions to cover the issues outlined
above, further consultations with Ward Members and the Chair of Plans Panel East
on the route for construction traffic; the content of the Section 106 Agreement and
details of external materials and the signing of an agreement under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) taking into account the
aforementioned discussions and covering the requirements of the travel plan, the
implementation of a traffic management system for the routing of the construction
traffic including a penalty for breaches of the agreed routing for the drivers; the
submission of an ecological management plan for the British Library campus at
Boston Spa and if these issues cannot be resolved, that the application be brought
back to Panel for determination

131 Application 09/03813/FU - Detached prefabricated classroom block to
school - Cockburn College of Arts Gipsy Lane LS11
Plans and photographs were displayed at the meeting. A site visit had taken
place earlier in the day which some Members had attended
Officers presented the report which sought permission for a detached
prefabricated classroom block at Cockburn College of Arts LS11
Members were informed that the prefabricated classroom block was currently
on site and had been since 2004 when a three year temporary planning consent was
granted for this use
The proposals were to use the classroom block as a vocational unit for the
sole use of the school, with 12 — 15 students using each of the rooms. To improve
the appearance of the block it was proposed to render this in the same off-white
colour as that of the main school building
Officers reported a late representation from the Southleigh Residents
Association who had raised objections to the proposals, stating that an agreement
had been reached between them and the school regarding additional off-street
parking arrangements so that particular objection had been withdrawn
If minded to approve the application Members’ views on how to proceed with
the increased off-street parking were sought as further consultation would be needed
if it was to be included in the current application
The Panel heard representations on behalf of the college and from an
objector who attended the meeting
Members discussed the following matters:
e the boundary fencing to the residential properties and that this seemed
less robust than that provided by the school on the boundary to the
adjacent golf course

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 8



e concerns that temporary planning permission had lapsed; that the
Authority had been brought into disrepute because of this and the need
to be fair and equitable when dealing with applications from the Council

e the need for Education Leeds to be asked to review its temporary
permissions which had run out or were close to the expiry period and
how it proposed to address the matter

e the suitabilty for permanent use of what was temporary
accommodation and how this related to the school as a whole

e concerns about the impact on local residents of on-street parking; that
temporary TROs had been introduced during the construction of the
new school and that although these would become permanent, they
were unlikely to be as effective as increased off-street car parking

e the need to resolve all elements of the application together rather than
piece-meal

Members also discussed the fact that the description of the application
had not explicitly indicated, as was usually the case, that the application was
retrospective. In response to this Members were advised that as the use had
expired in 2007 the application was for new proposals. Members questioned this,
requested a consistent approach in the future and cited the way in which application
09/01417/FU for the New Horizons School had been deal with (minute 108 refers)

RESOLVED -

i) To defer and delegate the grant of planning permission to the Chief
Planning Officer subject to the conditions set out in the submitted report and subject
to resolving issues of providing fencing to the boundary with the residential
properties and additional parking and that the application be referred back to Panel
for determination if agreement on these matters cannot be reached

ii) That Education Leeds be asked to review the temporary
permissions it currently has in force and to address any which had expired or were
close to expiring

132 Application 09/04658/FU - Change of use and alterations of basement to
one 2 bedroom flat with light-well to front to 106 Harehills Avenue Harehills
LS8

Plans and drawings were displayed at the meeting

Officers presented the report which sought permission for the conversion of a
basement area to one 2 bedroom flat at 106 Harehills Avenue LS8

Members were informed that the property which was in use as three flats did
not have the benefit of planning permission for this use. Whilst the onus was on the
applicant to prove this use had been continuous for four years, a check had indicated
that the property had comprised three flats since before Council tax records began

Officers reported receipt of a further letter of objection although this raised no
new issues

The Panel raised concerns regarding the adequacy of the headroom which
would be available in the proposed flat and the parking provision

RESOLVED - That determination of the application be deferred and a further
report be brought back to the next meeting addressing the concerns raised by
Members

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 9



133 Application 09/03534/FU - Change of use of shop to hot food takeaway
with flue to roof and part new shop front at 327 Harehills Lane Harehills LS9
Plans, photographs and graphics were displayed at the meeting
Officers presented a report which sought permission for the change of use of
a shop to a hot food take-away at 327 Harehills Lane LS9
Members discussed the following matters:
e the proliferation of hot food takeaways in the area and whether there
was a policy against this
e that UDPR policy SF15 which related to change of use to hot food
takeaways could be used to resist the expansion of this use in the area
o that the Local Authority had an obligation to contribute towards
combating health inequalities which sat uneasily with this application
e that much money had been spent in the area to curb anti-social
behaviour caused by people loitering around off-licences; that this
problem had moved to takeaways and that granting planning
permission would have an impact on residential amenity
Members were advised that UDPR Policy SF15 did contain some
constraints but these were insufficient in this case as the application site was within
the S2 centre and two parking spaces were being proposed. Furthermore the UDP
policy dealing with Primary and Secondary Shopping frontages could not be applied
in this case as the number of units of a single use was calculated within a block and
not an area
Members considered how to proceed
RESOLVED - That the Officer's recommendation to approve the application
be not agreed and that the Chief Planning Officer be asked to submit a further report
to the next meeting setting out reasons for refusal of the application based upon the
proliferation of hot food takeaways and the impact on residential amenity

134 Application 09/03257/FU - Detached single storey tennis hall with two
disabled parking spaces at Boston Spa Comprehensive School Clifford Moor
Road Boston Spa LS23

Further to minute 107 of the Plans Panel East meeting held on 19" November
2009 where Panel agreed to defer and delegate an application for a detached single
storey tennis hall with two disabled parking spaces at Boston Spa Comprehensive
School LS23, Members received a further report providing information on the issues
raised at the previous meeting

Officers presented the report and informed Members that the existing and
new facilities would be open to the community and that the school provided free
tennis coaching to 25 schools, with this continuing once the new tennis hall was
opened, with coaching for talented young players being included as part of the
package

The funding had been secured through a grant of £369,000 although this had
to be used by August 2010

Education Leeds had indicated there were no plans to demolish and rebuild
Boston Spa Comprehensive School

Additional landscaping was being proposed to the north and south of the site
to help to screen part of the development from residential properties

That the existing all-weather pitches were open and illuminated until 10.00pm
and the same time limit would be applied to the indoor tennis hall

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 10



Members noted the information provided and the possibility of inter-school
tennis competitions was suggested

RESOLVED - To note the report, the information provided and the additional
condition relating to hours to use being limited to no later than 10.00pm to coincide
with adjacent floodlighting

135 Application 09/02491/FU -Conservatory with external access ramp to
rear at Baab-Ul-llm Jamaat Community Centre 166 Shadwell Lane LS17

Further to minute 74 of the Plans Panel East meeting held on 24" September
2009 where Members deferred determination of the application for a conservatory
and access ramp to the rear of Baab-Ul-Ilm Jamaat Community Centre at 166
Shadwell Lane LS17, to enable further negotiations to take place between Officers,
the applicants and neighbours, the Panel considered a further report

Officers presented the report and outlined the negotiations which had taken
place which it was stated had concluded amicably

A restriction on the hours of use in line with that currently enjoyed by the
community centre was being proposed, although the applicants had indicated that
restricting the conservatory to dining use only could not be accepted in view of the
cost of the proposals

RESOLVED - That the application be granted subject to the conditions set
out in the submitted report

(During consideration of this matter, Councillor Gruen left the meeting)

136 Application 09/01462/FU - Variation of condition 22 laying out of car
parking area of application 07/03669/FU at Peel Street/Melbourne Street Morley
LS27

Members considered a report of the Chief Planning Officer seeking approval
for a variation of a condition relating to laying out of car parking area at Peel
Street/Melbourne Street Morley LS27, attached to application 07/03669/FU

It was noted that a parking statement which was referred to in the report had
not been included in the information provided to Panel

Councillor Finnigan requested that a site visit should take place prior to the
next meeting to enable full consideration of the issues raised by the application

RESOLVED - That consideration of the application be deferred to the next
meeting to enable a site visit to take place and that details of the applicant’s parking
survey be attached to the report

137 Applications 07/01009/FU and 07/0102/FU - Site 7 South Parkway
Seacroft; Site 4 Thorn Walk and Site 5 Oak Tree Drive/Amberton Road Gipton
LS9 for 249 houses - amendment to previously agreed legal agreement relating
to developer contributions

Further to minutes 377 and 380 of the Plans Panel East meeting held on 10™
May 2007 where Panel approved in principle applications for residential
developments as part of the EASEL scheme, Members considered a report of the
Chief Planning Officer on a proposed amendment to the Section 106 legal
agreement relating to developer contributions

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 11



Officers presented the report and stated that due to the downturn in the
housing market there was no immediate prospect of the eight sites delivering the 700
homes which had been proposed

Sites 5 and 7 had seen the commencement of some development and
Executive Board had agreed the purchase by the Council of 20 properties for social
and intermediate housing, with funding secured to support 88 properties for the
HomeBuy Direct equity share scheme and the delivery of 60 affordable properties to
be owned and managed by Chevin Housing Association

The legal agreement required that the contributions for each site towards
greenspace, public transport and education be made prior to development and in
one lump sum. However to facilitate development, Officers within the Council’s
Regeneration Team had negotiated an amendment with Bellways for approval by
Panel which would provide contributions upon the completion of each property. A
proposed payment schedule was appended to the submitted report for Members’
information and consideration

Officers were recommending to Panel that the proposed amendment to allow
staged payments of contributions be accepted

Members commented on the following matters:

o the difficult situation which existed; that people had been rehoused
from the site which had resulted in a knock-on effect on the availability
of social housing to other needy people; that the sites had been
cleared but that little development had taken place; concerns about
Section 106 funds across the city and the view that the amendment
which was being proposed was unsatisfactory

e how the situation could be resolved if Members did not approve the
amendment

e what the start and finish dates were for the payment of the
contributions

¢ the current constraints within the housing market

e if payments would be made on completion of a property or upon
occupation

o that the proposals represented a sensible suggestion to progress the
development

Officers provided the following comments:

e that what was being proposed was not a way of avoiding paying the
contributions but was a way of ensuring the viability of developing the
sites

e that buyers for 168 properties had been secured and that part of the
agreement was that these contributions would be paid

e that if Members did not approve the amendment then a further
agreement would need to be considered as currently the only interest
for properties on the two sites was from Housing Associations which
had grant money to purchase the homes

e regarding payment dates, it was not possible to indicate when
payments would be made as this related to when each property was
completed and then occupied, which was when the payment of
contributions was required

Members considered how to proceed

RESOLVED - To agree the amendment of the existing legal

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 12



agreement to allow staged payments of contributions in accordance with the
schedule set out in Annex 1 of the submitted report

(Under Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillors Congreve, Lyons and
Parker required it to be recorded that they voted against the matter)

138 Date and time of next meeting
Thursday 14" January 2010 at 1.30pm in the Civic Hall, Leeds

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 14th January, 2010

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda ltem 7

Originator:  Victoria Hinchliff
Walker
@@ Tel: 39 51343

- CI TY COUNCIL

2

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL EAST

Date: 14/01/10

Subject: APPLICATION 09/00541/OT - outline application to erect three detached

houses at the rear of Bryn, Winton House and Towerhurst, The Avenue, Collingham,
Wetherby, LS22 5BU

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE
Mr M Walker, Mr M 07/08/09 02/10/09
McPherson and Mr R Grange

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Harewood. Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: REFUSE PERMISSION for the following reasons:

The application site comprises mature garden spaces that are prominent in the streetscene,
provide a positive element in the landscape, are intrinsic to the character of the local area
and consequently are of significant public value. The proposed development by reason of its
scale, extent and layout results in the loss of these mature gardens and produces a form of
development that is inappropriate in its context and that fails to take opportunities available
for improving the character and quality of the area. Consequently the proposed
development is contrary to policies GP5, N12, H4 and BD5 of the Unitary Development
Plans Review (2006) and the guidance set out in Planning Policy Statement 1, ‘Delivering
Sustainable Development’ and Planning Policy Statement 3, ‘Housing’.

1 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 This application was deferred at the 10/12/09 Panel so that a site visit could be
carried out at the request of Councillor Wilson and agreed by Panel. The
application was originally referred to Plans Panel at the request of Ward Councillor

Page 15



2.2

2.3

3.2

3.3

Rachel Procter due to concerns regarding the impact on both spatial character and
residential amenity of the localities.

PROPOSAL:

The application is made in outline only seeking approval for the means of access,
layout and the scale of three detached houses. The houses are sited behind and
facing away from Bryn, Winton House and Towerhurst, which front onto The
Avenue.

Plot one is sited so that it fronts onto Linton Road, whereas plots two and three both
face onto the shared access drive. All vehicle access for the three houses is taken
from this drive. The existing hedge along Linton Road is proposed to be kept
although a new pedestrian access to plot one will be formed within it. Additional
tree planting is proposed to the rear of the hedge to screen plots two and three. A
postbox and road sign will be relocated as they interfere with the access point.

All three proposed houses are shown as two storey’s high with rooms within the roof
space. The overall height is shown as marginally below the height of houses on
The Avenue and Wharfedale Terrace. Indicative appearance shows the proposed
properties to have hipped roofs with gable features and rendered to match the host
properties. Appearance is however a reserved matter.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The application site is made up of three back garden areas belonging to Towerhurst,
Winton House and Bryn. These garden areas are long and wide, the curtilage of
Bryn extends some 70m long by 19m wide. All three areas are currently laid out as
garden space with fences, hedges and trees forming boundaries.

To the rear of these gardens there is a 4m wide access, which is grassed at the rear
of Towerhurst but becoming more overgrown as you progress up it. This pedestrian
route provides access to rear gardens and historically formed a route from the
gardens up to the River Wharfe, or onto Linton Road. The access is currently
blocked at the boundary of The Cottage which lies on the northern boundary of
Bryn. Adjacent to the rear access is a further access road which serves properties
on Wharfedale Terrace and The Bungalow. A rear parking area has been created
behind the houses on Wharfedale Terrace which is used by residents of this terrace.

The Avenue is a development of large detached houses, dating from the 1920s. At
that time there was very little development on Linton Road and The Avenue
signalled new growth in the village brought about by new commuters using the
station sited on the south side of Linton Road. The railway has gone now but the
area has seen steady suburban growth since the Second World War. The two sides
of The Avenue have similar sized detached properties, but in very different sized
plots, the garden areas of those on the western side being much smaller than those
on the eastern side. Adjacent to the west is the Lady Elizabeth Hastings primary
school, whilst to the east of the site is a row of redbrick terraces fronting onto Linton
Road (Wharfedale Terrace). A new (c. 2000) suburban estate of detached
properties wraps around the side and rear of these terraces. To the south of Linton
Road is again a modern suburban estate of detached properties, a mix of two-storey
houses and bungalows. The boundary of the site with Linton Road consists of
fencing with hedging to the rear. The boundary of the application site with Linton
Road is marked by an attractive hedge and grass verge.

Page 16



3.4

4.2

4.3

The site does not lie within the proposed Collingham Conservation Area; however it
does lie close to the proposed area. There are no other policy designations
affecting the site.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

H31/195/89/ - three bedroom detached bungalow to garden site. Refused 31/07/89.
The application was refused due to the proposed dwelling being too close to the
highway and the rear boundary and lack of adequate garden space for both the
proposed and existing property. The proposal was also considered to be intrusive in
the street scene and detrimental to the spacious character of the locality. An appeal
was lodged and dismissed on 26/01/90.

H31/144/88/ - outline to erect detached house to garden site. Refused 01/08/88.
The proposal was refused as it would not provide sufficient parking, garaging or
turning area, insufficient garden area and it was also considered to be intrusive to
the street scene and detrimental to the spacious character of the locality.

Both of the above applications were for a site at the rear of Towerhurst. There are
no other relevant applications; however two properties further north along The
Avenue have lost part of the garden spaces to building of The Terns development.
This is land to the rear of Birkby and Oakroyd, utilised in application reference
31/183/93/FU - laying out of access roads and erection of 54 dwellings. Approved
21/07/94.

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

Initial concerns regarding the spacing and siting of the dwellings were raised with
the agents and as a result the following changes to the scheme have been made.

e The garden area of plot three has been extended by 0.5m.

e The boundary between plots one and two has been altered to give greater
outlook distances for plot one.

e The hedge is shown to be retained fully along the southern boundary of the
site (although note landscaping is still a reserved matter).

e Some large Juliet balcony shown at first floor level of plots two and three
have been removed (although note the plans are indicative only in terms of
appearance).

e Additional tree planting to the boundary between Towerhurst and Plot 1 has
been added along with a larger tree species at the corner of Plot 2. The
existing gap in the hedge is also to be utilised for the pedestrian access from
Plot 1, rather than creating a new opening.

e Changes have been made to drive length and turning provision at Plot 2
following discussions with highway DC officers.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

A site notice was not used to advertise this application due to a lack of available
streetlamps in the area on which to place a notice. Neighbour Notification Letters
were however sent out on the 10/08/09 to residents on The Avenue, Dewar Close,
Wharfedale Terrace, Tern Park and The Bungalow. The deadline for comments
was 02/09/09.

Page 17



Collingham with Linton Parish Council - objects to the proposal on the grounds that
it forms backland development which is out of character with the area. They also
consider the development to be inappropriate in its context and to not integrate well
with neighbouring buildings on to Dewar Close and The Avenue. The council further
considers that it will impact on local access with regard to covenants regarding
access to the River Wharfe and that the development is within the flood plain.

Issues of character, context and flooding are dealt with below. The issue of

6.3

6.4

6.5

covenants is a civil matter, and is not a material planning consideration.

31 objection letters were received raising the following concerns;

Highway safety - the access is considered to be dangerous due to car
parking on-street by school parents. Highway issues are considered below.

Overdevelopment of the site. Issues of siting and layout considered below.
Loss of view. This is not a material planning consideration.

Harm to character of the area. This issue is considered below.

Increase in traffic. Highway issues are addressed below.

Risk of precedent and prior refusals on the site. See discussion of principle
below.

Flood risk - houses in the area have suffered from localised flooding. Issues
of flooding are dealt with below.

Loss of privacy and overlooking. Issues of amenity are addressed below.

Covenants providing for access from the rear gardens to Linton Road and
restrict development on site. This is a civil matter concerning the land
owners of the site and is not a material planning consideration.

Trees have already been removed from site. There are no protected trees
within or adjacent to the site and the site is not in a Conservation Area,
residents are therefore at liberty to remove trees in their rear garden areas.

Gardens are an important open area. See discussion of character below.

Noise of construction. Strictly not a planning matter, however, given the
sensitive location of the site a condition controlling the hours of construction
works could be considered.

Properties will have an overbearing effect. See discussion on siting and
amenity below.

Garages will be converted to habitable rooms, thus increasing pressure on
parking. This can be controlled through a condition to ensure garages
remain as such.

Lack of detail about materials. The application is made in outline only,
indicative plans suggest that the properties will be rendered to match those
on The Avenue. Condition requiring approval of materials would be applied
anyway.

Loss of amenity to properties on Dewar Close. See discussion of amenity
below.

Neighbours were notified following some small alterations to the plans on 12/10/09.
19 further letters of objection were received, which largely re-iterated all previous
concerns.

Neighbours were further notified of some additional amendments on 30/10/09.
Similar objections were received.

Page 18



7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:
Statutory:

Highways - officers raise no objection in principle to the formation of a vehicular
access on the line of the existing pedestrian access subject to conditions.

Non-statutory:

Comments from internal consultees are dealt with in the appraisal below.

PLANNING POLICIES:
Development Plan

The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) has no specific relevant policy to this site.
However, the main objective of the plan is to achieve sustainable growth which
includes locating housing development in main urban areas, particularly the
principal, sub-regional and regional towns and cities (YH4, YH5 and YH7) and on
previously developed land first. Policy YH8 requires LPA’s to identify, protect and
enhance green infrastructure, and ENV8D requires retention and incorporation of
biodiversity into development and encourages networks of green infrastructure.

The adopted Unitary Development Plan Review (UDPR) includes the following
relevant policies;

e GP5 - general planning considerations.

e N12 — urban design principles — including spaces between buildings, respect
for character, provision of lifetime homes.

e N13 - building design should be of high quality and have regard to the
character and appearance of their surroundings.

¢ N39A — sustainable development.
¢ N51 — new development should enhance existing wildlife habitats.

¢ H4 - housing on unallocated sites should be in the main urban areas and on
previously developed land first and shall comply with all other relevant
policies.

e T2 - and highway and access issues to be addressed.
e T24 - car parking guidelines.
e BDS5 - issues of amenity.
e LD1 —landscaping.
Relevant supplementary guidance

e SPG13 - Neighbourhoods for Living - this provides general advice on
housing design, including provision of amenity, protection from overlooking,
parking layout etc.

e Street Design Guide — gives guidance on street design, layout and parking
provision.

Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements

e PPS1 - Planning and Sustainable Development (2005) - advocates good
design that contributes to the area and provides for sustainable
development.

Page 19



10.

10.1

10.2

10.3.

10.4.

10.5

e PPS - Planning and Climate Change, supplement to PPS1 (December
2007) — new development should deliver a high quality local environment.

e PPS3 - Housing (2006) -provides advice on location of housing and also
has an emphasis on good design.

e PPG17 — Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation (May 2006) —
domestic gardens can play a role in providing amenity greenspace that may
be of public value.

MAIN ISSUES

1. Principle of development.

2, Impact on spatial character of the area.
3. Impact on residential amenity.

4. Impact on highway safety.

5. Other issues, including flood risk.

APPRAISAL
Principle of Development

The application site is not located within a Principal Town (as identified in the RSS)
therefore meet the requirements of RSS policy or UDPR policy H4.

The site, as garden area, is classed as a brownfield site which does fit with the
sequential approach adopted by PPS3 that seeks the re-use of developed land to
comply with sustainable development principles.

However, PPS3 : Housing stresses the importance of good design which
contributes to the creation of sustainable mixed communities. It states, in line with
policy contained in PPS1 : Delivering Sustainable Development that good design
should contribute positively to making places better for people and at paragraph 13
states that:

“‘Design which is inappropriate in its context, or which fails to take the opportunities
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions
should not be accepted.”

This sentiment is also expressed in identical terms in PPS1 at paragraph 34.

It is considered that the proposal is inappropriate in this location in that it does not
improve the character and quality of the area within which it is located and is
therefore unacceptable in terms of PPS1 and PPS3

Impact on Spatial Character

This area of Collingham has a green and open character appropriate to the rural
setting of the area. This is especially apparent on Linton Road with the visual
openness provided by the rear gardens of houses on The Avenue, due to the fact
that the road forms the side boundary of the gardens. This gives a distinct visual
break in built development to either side and provides a highly attractive visual
amenity of benefit to all who travel along Linton Road. This openness is further
enhanced by the fact that on the southern side of Linton Road the boundary here is
formed by rear gardens with boundary fences overhung with hedging. The
openness arising from the long rear gardens gives the area an air of spaciousness
which forms an important part of the character of this area. The garden areas
contribute to this character by being in effect public open space within the private

Page 20



10.6

10.7.

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

realm providing long vistas of open land via glimpses between buildings and over
boundaries.

The character of the eastern side of The Avenue is one of spacious villas set in
large garden plots, with hedging and mature trees very much in evidence. The
openness is enhanced as you travel up The Avenue, with views between the
houses to the rear gardens beyond. These large rear gardens stretch all the way
up The Avenue to open land on the banks of the River Wharfe. These gardens
therefore help to bring this area of countryside down into the heart of the village and
provide an important habitat corridor and element of the local green infrastructure.
Due to the age of the properties these gardens are all mature and well developed
and provide a spaciousness and openness that is not apparent in more modern
developments within the village.

It is considered therefore, that to introduce built development into this openness
would result in a discordant element in the streetscene and would interrupt the
visual openness that provides so much to the character of this locality.
Furthermore, the ability of the gardens to operate as part of the local green
infrastructure and to provide this visual amenity for all will be much reduced. The
proposal is therefore considered harmful to the character and appearance of the
area contrary to policies GP5, H4, N12, BD5 and to guidance in PPS1 and PPS3.

Impact on Residential Amenity

The proposal provides the recommended amount of garden space for the new
properties in line with Neighbourhoods for Living. The remaining garden areas for
the host plots are also in line with guidance. Suitable outlook distances between
the two sets of buildings are provided, for example plot one provides 2.5m to the
shared boundary with Towerhurst and a distance of 9.5m to the garage of
Towerhurst. Plots two and three have distances of 30 plus metres to the rear
elevations of the host properties. The proposal is therefore not considered to result
in harm to the amenity of the host or the proposed properties, due to overlooking,
dominance, overshadowing or a lack of amenity space.

Concerns have arisen regarding overlooking and loss of privacy to properties to the
east on Wharfedale Terrace and south on Dewar Close. Plot two looks onto the
gable end of number one Wharfedale Terrace, which has windows at ground, first
and attic level. The separation between the two buildings is 16m and plot two
achieves 11m to the site boundary. This is more than adequate in terms of
recommended distances from living room or bedroom windows to a boundary. Plot
three faces the rear garden areas and parking areas of Wharfedale Terrace, again
a suitable distance of 16m separation is provided.

The eastern boundary of the site is formed by a high hedge and trees which will be
retained and enhanced giving an effective privacy barrier. Large Juliet windows, at
first floor level have been removed from plots two and three and the second floor
windows are velux windows in the roof. Although the elevational details are
indicative only they do show that privacy can be protected adequately at the
reserved matters stage. With regard to Dewar Close plot one is some 15m from the
rear boundary, which is again considered sufficient for the protection of privacy,
although again this can be controlled at the reserved matters stage.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with H4, GP5 and BD5 in terms of
amenity in relation to privacy distances between adjoining properties. However, in
terms of the wider amenity of the neighbourhood it is considered that there will be a
detrimental impact on residential amenity by virtue of the closing down of the
current air of spaciousness that residents enjoy.

Page 21



10.12

10.13.

10.14.

10.15.

10.16.

10.17

Government advice, as set out in PPG17 : Planning for open space, sport and
recreation, is that green spaces perform vital functions as areas for nature
conservation and biodiversity and by acting as ‘green lungs’ can assist in meeting
objectives to improve air quality. In defining ‘open spaces’ PPG17 includes green
spaces in and around housing and domestic gardens and village greens. The
building over of these gardens areas as proposed in the current proposals is
therefore at variance with government advice as to the importance of retaining such
area as wild life corridors and green lungs.

Issues of Highway safety and Amenity

The proposed access point utilises the existing 4m wide pedestrian access. This is
considered to be sufficient for the number of properties requiring access from it and
the formation of a new dropped kerb vehicle crossing here is not considered to
result in any issues of highway or pedestrian safety.

Each property provides a double garage and two parking spaces within the plot
curtilage so there is adequate parking provision for both residents and visitors
within the site. The retention of the garages as parking provision can be ensured
through a condition which will ensure control of parking provision within the site.

A number of objections have been raised regarding the safety of the proposed
access point given the extent of on street parking that occurs along Linton Road.
This on street parking is a result of “school run” parking for the nearby primary
school. The issues that arise as a result of this parking are for residents and the
relevant highway services to address and should not preclude development, which
Highways consider to provide a safe access.

The proposal has been assessed against policies T2 and T24 and guidance in the
Street Design Guide and has been found to comply with relevant policies.

Other Issues

Some objections relate to flooding as properties in the local area have experienced
such flooding in recent years. The site does not lie within the Strategic Flood Risk
Zone or within the Environment Agency Flood Risk Zones so is therefore not
considered to be particularly at risk. Comments from the Mains Drainage section
have not raised any concerns regarding the proposal. It is undoubted, however that
by allowing development additional surface water run-off would be greatly
increased. The gardens currently act as part of a natural Sustainable Urban
Drainage system and this would be interrupted. In light of known local concerns
about recent flood events, it is considered important to ensure that the development
does not result in an unacceptable increase in levels of surface water run-off that
would impact on neighbouring properties. For this reason it is recommended that if
approval is granted then conditions regarding surface water drainage should be
applied and that all surfacing materials are porous to ensure natural drainage can
occur.

11 CONCLUSION

11.1

The application is made in outline and seeks approval of the layout, the access and
the scale of development. The layout is considered to result in detriment to the
spatial character and visual amenity of this locality and the harm that arises from this
is considered to outweigh all other matters. Members are therefore recommended to
refuse planning permission on these grounds.

Page 22



Background Papers:
Application file. 09/00541/0OT
Certificate of Ownership — signed as applicants.

Page 23



i 500(48)5561 SS61

e e )

an 80'LLLE 2v®00Z:L g
g v, s

aisingd

600C 320 1 -
50331 'WYHONITIOD e

‘0v¥0Y NOLNIT LV INIWJOT3A30 03S0d0dd = \mlo_woz‘mg.ﬂum% Jajaiase2ld — — —_— s R S e e
: sa3adl

LNOAV 3LIS G3S0dO¥d

LIOD PIEUOROBLL-POOIDI MMM

QUONACD AL

622085 L0610 4 QaNvIZY
522585 L3610 1 QaYO013¥ 39 38,01 OvOY avo¥ NOINIT
205 2257 Aqsogiom OLNOIS ONY XO8 NOINIT ONOTY Q3NIV13Y

'PBOY UONBM ‘i ‘OIPMIS (IuNed ~—>=1S0d ONIISIX3 3 H jiSE 38 01 S1S0d

SEOWY PRIOLRUD O03H ONitShA —3LYD ONILSXA

GIVNOGOYW 000TEGTIM e /

a3,

ONLLSIXE 'G30N1A3 VauY 3U1S '0300Y 3XV1 ONY1 3SN0K NONIM ‘IMOTIVHS e

3AUND GVO S5300V 1074 'S3Nn > s e
1INS OL 0318170V SNOISIAIG LOd ‘03AOM & GNY Z S107d (8H /60 NV 90) v A3 3 SR

$3Y0S400H OL SONIY HONI (81 /60 NYT 94) 8 A3¥

g030Y SIMYN

M1 03804OHA ‘GINIVL3 NVOHS SSIHIAD ONLLSIXE (BW 60 834 S0) O AN

ATWOLS

TIONIS 3N0BY W03 11N8MOHS O1 GIAQY INI XOIHL (B /60 438 81) O AZY

x.m.v.

10} ‘G300Y ONIAOW X08 10d GNY NOIS 3 3LON ‘30 WG v LY 3AMT ONOT
oL 1233

S
&
r

L ‘aadav| “uadoose 8"
oL 10TV Z 107 wose ]
OL G3SVIUONI £ ONY Z L0 NIIMLIE SAVO ‘W0OT AB NI GIAOW TIVANNYIY <%
ONY 1S3 0L GIAOW & 10d ‘3OS HOVS WAUOOE 1@ NI QAW STIVM 301S 1NOd 3
ry N
‘310N JOVHUAL JIVOIUVHM L ONIHIE ISN ONYY 'AYONNQE »

3015 WO AVMY GIAOW | 10 OO ONINIQ WO WS 01 319 01 3SVIUINI
AMYONNOR € 10 '+ 104 01 G3ONINY N3QHYO (/60 100 51) © AR
S30vS ONAN

|
\

Wit \m%

100401

H0OT4 ONNOHS 'W9's O HIONT' NI G3SY3NONI AIHA Z LOTd NMOKS 8K
1S '$5300V 0 150 08) W3
10740158300V IVOSONYT ¥3HLUN (@N 180 AON 22) | A3Y

U,

%,

NIAI09) ATOH

AR
VWYL ONISH

QINIVLIN
3OC3H HANYIATT
HOIH Wy ONIISIX3:

(onngaas
AIVMIIIHS)

ONDEVd
OIS

3
NO G3ION §31034S Q315399NS ‘31w M A (OHONVY,
NI SSO¥D HUM NMOHS S3331 MIN gy ¥ NINIDNYS Xd) ABSIHO-

ONITI3MQ ¥O4 JYOIS NIg 70

JAI¥A SSIDDV Q3YVHS ILVAIN ‘€0

NOILD3TIOD A1HFIM ¥O4 VA3V Nig TYNIWWOD 120
S8¥IN G3ddO¥A HIIM SSIDDV IV INDIHIA MIN 110

A3

QIDOBH Z0L1'0 :VI¥Y LS

A LyG00/60

Page 24



Roeselare

T
L
\\\
.
\\\
s
R
|
°
LN
L
L Grasmere
LN
|
L
LN
N
N
Sk
LN
|

Greystone
Cottage

Hall The Grange

Pavilion Q

Chape|
Cottage

EAST PLANS PANEL |

Scale 1/1500

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedings.
(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567 2008 Paoe 25




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Agenda Iltem 8

Originator: Richard Smith

Tel: 0113 247 5518

- CI TY COUNCIL

PLANS PANEL EAST
Date: 14" January 2010

Subject: APPLICATION 09/01462/FU — Variation of condition 22, laying out of car
parking area of application 07/03669/FU at Peel Street/Melbourne Street, Morley.

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE
Compass Properties (Leeds) 3 April 2009 3 July 2009
LLP
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:
Morley South Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v |Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION:
GRANT PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

Time Limit on Full Permission 3 Years

Samples of Walling and Roofing materials to be submitted.

Fencing and/or walls to be provided.

Samples Surfacing Materials Submitted Landscaping to be submitted.
Submission of Landscaping Details

Implementation of Landscaping Scheme

Provision for Replacement of Trees

Provision of Cycle Parking

Facilities for Storage/Disposal Litter

10. Green-space enhancements

11. Water Disposal to be agreed.

12. Feasibility study into Infiltration Drainage

13. Contaminated Land Information

14. Contaminated Land Amended Remediation Statement

15. Contaminated Land Verification Report.

16. All car parking as provided, retained (amended no. of spaces) and to remain
unallocated thereafter.

CoNoOO~WON =~

Page 27



17. Visibility splay to be provided.

Reasons for approval:

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

The application is considered to comply with policies GP5, N2, N4, N13, H4, T2, T24,
BD5 and LD1 of the UDP Review, as well as guidance contained within the
Supplementary Planning Document - Street Design Guide (2009), PPS1, PPS3 and
PPG13, and having regard to all other material considerations, as such the application
is recommended for approval.

INTRODUCTION:

This application is brought to Plans Panel (East) given that is seeks to vary an earlier
permission, ref. 07/03669/FU, as granted at Plans Panel (East) dated 30" August
2007. This variation amounts to a replacement of 13 ‘allocated’ car parking spaces
with 9 ‘unallocated’ car parking spaces. Since the August 2007 Panel there has been
a change in planning policy guidance in respect of parking provision and the
recommendation to approve reduced parking reflects this updated guidance.

This application was considered at Plans Panel East on the 10" December 2009,
where Officers had recommended approval of the proposal, subject to conditions.
However, at that meeting Councillor Finnigan requested to defer the application to
allow for a site visit to be made and the application’s parking survey to be attached for
Members to consider. Members agreed to this request.

The applicant’s parking survey, which comprises a series of colour photographs and
covering letter, is being distributed to Members under separate cover (so as to retain
their original print clarity). The photographs are stamped with the time that they were
taken; the letter refers to whether this is weekdays or weekends. The photo’s also
show that little use through the day is made of the car park which is available to
residents to the west side of Melbourne Street. The photo’s also that on-street parking
is more apparent during the weekday daytime hours but is much less evident during
evening/off-peak hours when the residential parking demand will be much more
apparent. As part of the assessment of the application, highway officers have carried
out their own site visits to observe highway conditions, including the extent of off-
street parking. In summary it is considered that on balance, the off-street parking
capacity (and on-street capacity should it ever be required) for residents will be
available at acceptable levels at all times and particularly so in evenings/off-peak
when they would need it most.

PROPOSAL.:

The application is to re-designate and vary (reduce) the level of off-street parking that
was attached to approval ref. 07/03669/FU, which has now been developed as a new
build residential block of 13no x 1-bed flats. The flats are occupied.

The applicant is looking to re-designate the type of off-street car parking that is
provided to serve the development. The current application is to provide a total of 9no
‘unallocated’ spaces as opposed to 13no ‘allocated’ spaces, which were previously
approved in 2007. 3no spaces would remain within the site of the flat complex and
6no provided across Melbourne Street opposite the flats. Both of these pieces of land
(either side of Melbourne Street) formed the overall 2007 site (as reflected in this
application).

Page 28



2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

The term ‘unallocated means that spaces are not allocated to the individual occupiers
of the flats and therefore can be used more flexibly. All other parts of the scheme are
as previously approved and have not changed.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The site was occupied by a red brick built commercial/industrial building previously
used as a workshop before last being used as offices.

The approved development of 13no flats has now been built and is occupied by
residents. The complex, which is located immediately outside the designated S2 town
centre, features 3no car parking spaces immediately adjacent to the residential block.
The remaining spaces are located on the opposite side of Melbourne Street, within
outside the S2 centre, but have not formally been laid out.

The site is abutted by two storey residential properties/three storey flats alongside and
opposite on Peel Street. Along Melbourne Street, the applicant has office premises (a
converted workshop/warehouse building of 2 storeys) which adjoin the area proposed
for the additional 4no parking spaces. Melbourne Street has an array of buildings
used for education, office and industrial purposes. The area is mixed residential and
commercial in character.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

07/03669/FU — Part two storey and part three storey block of 13 one bedroom flats,
with 13 car parking spaces — Approved 03.09.07

08/03931/FU - Part 4 storey part 2 storey block of 13 flats, 1 office unit and ground
floor covered car parking — Withdrawn 30.10.08 (this application was proposed largely
on the adjoining site, as termed by the applicants as ‘Phase II’, but is relevant as it
also formed part of the parking space afforded to the current application — termed by
the applicants as ‘Phase I').

09/00358/FU - Variation of condition 22, laying out of car parking area of planning
permission 07/03669/FU at Peel Street/Melbourne Street, Morley — Withdrawn
01.04.09

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

During the course of assessing application 08/03931/FU (for a mixed residential/office
scheme) it became evident that the additional 10no car parking spaces attached to
application 07/03669/FU (to be provided further to the 3 spaces sited adjacent to the
residential block) had not been provided within the proposals being shown for the re-
development of the former workshop/warehouse building site. This 2008 scheme was
therefore withdrawn and the applicant was advised that a variation of condition
application and a new layout would have to be submitted.

A previous application, ref. 09/00358/FU, proposed 7no spaces, which upon
discussions with officers was considered insufficient and the application was therefore
withdrawn with a view to increasing the number provided. This resulted in the
submission of the current proposal for 9no spaces.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

Page 29



6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

8.2

The application has been advertised by site notices (on 24™ April 2009, expired 15"
May 2009).

1 letter of objection has been received from Morley Town Council which raises the
following point:

- parking problems exist already given that many surrounding properties do not
benefit from any off-street parking — dealt with in appraisal section

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Statutory:

None.

Non Statutory Consultations:

Highways — No objections to level of parking being reduced to 9no spaces subject to
a condition requiring that the spaces remain unallocated in perpetuity.

Morley & Rothwell Town Centre Manager — No comments received but on previous
application 09/00358/FU it was stated that no objections would be raised subject to
there being no additional car parking being evident at public car parks on Commercial
Street.

PLANNING POLICIES:

Development Plan — The adopted development plan comprises the Regional Spatial
Strategy (RSS) and adopted Unitary Development Plan (Review) (UDPR):

UDPR:

GP5 — Requirement of Development Proposals: seeks to ensure that development
proposals resolve detailed planning considerations, including amenity.

N2 — Greenspace and Residential Developments: outlines the local ‘establishment
hierarchy’ to green space provision

N4 — Greenspace Hierarchy: suggests appropriate calculations to be made for
securing green space provision

N13 — Design and New Buildings: requires development to be of high quality and
having regard to character/appearance of their surroundings.

H4 — Residential Development (Sites Not Identified in UDPR): development of such
sites shall be in a sustainable location, within the capacity of infrastructure and
complies with all other UDP policies.

T2 — Transport Provision for Development: development proposals should not create
new, or exacerbate existing, highway problems.

T24 — Parking Provision and New Development: outlines guidance on the level of
parking considered appropriate for development proposals.

BD5 — Amenity and New Buildings: Amenity and New Buildings: outlines that
development proposals should be designed with consideration given to their own and
neighbouring amenity considerations.

LD1 — Landscaping Schemes: details considerations required for any landscape
scheme including existing and proposed soft (and hard) landscaping

Relevant supplementary guidance

Page 30



8.3

9.0

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Street Design Guide (2009) Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) was adopted
in August 2009 — section 3.9 (Car Parking) refers to detailed guidance on suggested
car parking provision for residential developments. The consultation draft of this
document was approved for development control purposes in September 2007.

Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements

Planning Policy Statement 1 — Delivering Sustainable Development (2005)
Planning Policy Statement 3 — Housing (2006)

Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 — Transport (2001)

MAIN ISSUES

e Principle of Development
e Car Parking
e Other Considerations

APPRAISAL

Principle of Development

The principle of a residential scheme for flats was established through the approval of
application 07/03669/FU, the development of which has been built and now occupied
by residents. The site is sustainable in location, being set within/on the border of the
Town Centre with its shops, services, facilities and public transport. No concerns are
raised under UDPR policy H4 or guidance set out in PPS1/PPS3.

Car Parking

It is understood all the 13 units are now occupied (all rented); however the uptake of
the off-street car parking facilities has been limited. The units have been marketed for
sale or for rent.

The applicant has produced a parking survey (as submitted through application
09/00358/FU) showing levels of parking on-street around the site arguing there not to
be an evident local parking problem. They suggest that much of the on-street daytime
parking can be related/connected to their existing operations at their Melbourne Street
commercial premises. They outline that this would be re-developed at a future date for
residential/commercial purposes, if this application is successful. An indicative layout
of this has thus been provided.

The original application deemed that 1 space was required per flat, reflecting
guidance set out in the UDPR that states that dwellings in S2 centres should have no
more than 1 spaces per dwelling, or a maximum of 1.5 spaces per dwelling (averaged
over a development) outside of S2 centres.

The Street Design Guide SPD now updates UDPR guidance with an alternative and
more specific car parking advice (based on guidance carried out by the Department
for Communities and Local Government, in their 2007 publication ‘Residential Car
Parking Research’).

The current application has re-assessed the off-street parking provision in light of the
Street Design Guide and DCLG research, which gives a methodology to differentiate
between the off-street parking demand of a development depending on it proportion of

Page 31



allocated and unallocated car parking spaces. Eventual car parking numbers are
calculated in light of this proportion and a number of other factors.

10.7 The DCLG document uses 2001 census statistics and suggests that car ownership
varies most directly in relation to dwelling type, size and tenure. The variables given
are: type — house or flat, size — number of habitable rooms (i.e. all rooms excluding
bathrooms — as used in census) and tenure — owned or rented. The 2001 census area
statistics are then grown in line with forecasts for car ownership. Actual car parking
provision is then related to allocation of spaces to individual dwellings.

10.8 The allocation of a spaces to an individual dwelling can have an adverse impact on
the efficiency of car parking provision, as there is no flexibility on who can use the
spaces. The proposal is that 0% of the spaces are allocated and planning controls
will ensure that this remains so in perpetuity. On this basis, the provision of 9
unallocated spaces to serve the 13 flats (assumed to be owner occupied) meets the
requirements of the guidance. By way of comparison, if each flat were provided with
an allocated space (i.e. 13) then the methodology used would require a further 4
spaces be provided (17 in total).

10.9 In summary, the change from allocated car parking to unallocated warrants a review
of the overall numbers required to prevent overspill parking taking place. The
application seeks permission for the provision of 9 unallocated spaces (rather than the
13 allocated spaces approved under application 07/03669/FU) and a condition has
been suggested to ensure that this remains the case thereafter. Given recently
adopted local policy guidance and the context of the types/location of property, it is
considered this is an acceptable level of parking provision. If the flats were to become
owner occupied then the 9 spaces would still meet the guidance set out in the Street
Design Guide. The application is therefore considered acceptable to policies T2 and
T24 and guidance within the SPD and PPG13.

Other Considerations

10.10 All other considerations that were approved under the grant of application
07/03669/FU are still relevant and no concerns are raised against their original
assessment; this includes the visual appearance and massing of the development,
use of materials and provision of amenity space.

10.11 As with application 07/03669/FU, the applicant is still required to contribute to the
enhanced provision of off-site green-space with a delivery mechanism achieved by
planning condition.

10.12 The application is considered to accord with policies GP5, N2, N4, N13, BD5 and
LD1.

11.0 CONCLUSION

11.1 The revised proposals and application are considered to provide sufficient shared off-
street car parking at an appropriate level given the tenure and location of the flats and
public transport/shops/facilities available in Morley in close proximity. On balance the
application is considered acceptable subject to the application of all relevant
conditions as again placed/varied to permission 07/03669/FU.

Background Papers:
Application file
History files 07/03669/FU & 09/00358/FU
Page 32



Certificate of ownership:
Signed by applicant.

Page 33



WO ROy QUIBLABAIIY NS GEEITZ SLALO TPL

B35 Audedy [/ §SUS PR
saugedy  mng MEN oug)

193cRid

U6 TR E110 THL D98 LIS ASop
YS8S SUNOqRlY L7 ‘SeyRdodd ssedwery

IN3MD

GO0Z e
Ava

AT

Gz IVS

s ue saneds Oug o) walppe W ogN

Aara i
sSpeuede JsRUS WAogEl [ 9SS BRY o)
pajenpap Bupped eusyppy :

ENIMvE]

|Ls JunogqE) 2

lllllllll

Page 34

n

09/01462

19245 ANOqRL [Z 04 SSENY

SINSUYYAY 1TBHIS YN0




09/01462/FU

Car Park

r . N .
R B
- o A
S %Jrég

\ \ \\‘ “\‘\\

,,,,,

S
v
“

P .
v
P
[
v
o
o
(A
[N
.
Peel Street Centre

Sorting
Office

’ ' . K
. \ | é
B ' M v - -
E . o L
‘ Exchange P, ¥ Club Mills 3 ] -7 -
i N ¢ A L ~ - - .
g c ' ’ Lot ot .
‘ . ! Car Park ' A . e . .
< X . % A . . B /o\ ]

Scale 1/1500

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedings.

(c) Crown Copyright. Al rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567 Paoe 35 == C1TY COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



=

SCANNED

ULVELOPIVIENT DEPARTMENT

Leeds City Council, fo Action nto File |
Department of Planning, -6 MAR 2009 ;
Leonardo Building, /, g JOP 3 }
2 Rossington Street D 5 '
LEEDS LS2 8HD D, =9 MAR 2009 l
07/03669/FU i

F

Date: 20™. February 2009

Further to our discussion regarding the above I enclose for your attention a series of
photographs taken at various times during typical days.

You will see that from photographs 1-8 incl. that prior to 8.00am on weekdays tShere is very
little in the way of street parking requirement on Melbourne Street, and the offstreet parking
Provision is occupied by one car only (please note the blue Rover is ming).

After 8.00am you will see the parking generated by companies operating out of the building
which will be replaced by our phase 2 proposal, is very concentrated, but this requirement
will of course disappear in the event of Phase 2 going ahead.

You will further see that after the initial demand in the early morning that the parking thins
out again (photographs 13-19 incl.).

Photographs 20-22 incl. shown the requirement at the weekend as absolutely minimal both in
terms of on and off-street parking.

I hope that this information is of use to you in your deliberations.
I look forward to hearing from you.

Best regards,

Tim ennett

c.c Messrs. Compass Properties (LEEDS) LLP, Peter Baldwin Esq.

o Chirant. Marlaw
e Street, Morley,

Page 37



-Nﬂ”!‘:.l

|

fiuy







i e







L
)]

\
|




% /
..\‘\ / \

Y




Page 44



Agenda ltem 9

eed S Originator: Nicola Moss
m L Tel: 01132 478028

- CI TY COUNCIL

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL EAST

Date: 14/01/2010

Subject: APPLICATION 09/02871/FU — Change of use and alterations of former joiners

shop to form one 4 bedroom dwelling house with attached car port with 2 car parking
spaces, Churchside Villas, Methley

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE

Prado Properties LLP 01 July 2009 26 August 2009
Electoral Wards Affected: Kippax & Specific Implications For:
Methley

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to the specified conditions:

. Time limit on full permission

. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in the Plans Schedule

External roofing and walling materials to match the existing stonework and natural
slate roof tiles

Traditional local materials to be used

Pointing in lime mortar, brush compacted and finished flush or recessed

First floor window in west elevation to be obscurely glazed and non-opening
Details of surface materials to vehicular access

Details of re-grading of access track to new levels

No demolition to take place until Local Planning Authority is notified of contract for
works

10.Restricted hours of construction and demolition

11.Report on noise and vibration control during construction

12.Removal of permitted development rights

13.Development to be carried out in accordance with section 4 of submitted Bat
Survey

SN

©®e NGO~

Page 45



14. Written confirmation of implementation of bat access to dwelling and housing for
nesting house sparrow and swallow in dwelling and car port

15. Car ports to remain as such for vehicular storage only and without garage doors

16. Details of potential contaminants used within the building to be submitted

17.First floor window in rear elevation to bedroom one shall contain obscure glazing

18.Finished floor levels in accordance with approved FRA

Reasons for approval: The application is considered to comply with policies GP5, BD5,
BD6, BC7, N12, N13, N18A, N18B, N19, N25, N49, T2 and T24 of the UDP Review, as well
as guidance contained within Neighbourhoods for Living: A Guide for Residential Design in
Leeds and having regard to all other material considerations, as such the application is
recommended for approval.

1.0

1.1

1.2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.0

3.1

3.2

INTRODUCTION:

This application is brought to Plans Panel East at the request of Councillor James
Lewis, who as a Ward Councillor, objects to the proposed development on the
grounds that it will result in an increase in on-street parking and traffic, which would
cause detriment to highway safety, in addition to causing overlooking of surrounding
residential properties and providing inadequate bin storage.

The application was deferred at the December Panel 2009, due to a request from
Councillor Parker for a site visit.

PROPOSAL:

The proposal seeks full planning permission for the change of use of a part two
storey, part single storey, former joiners building, into a four bedroom dwelling
house. The proposal includes the demolition of an existing single storey outbuilding,
to be replaced with an attached, new build, single storey car port, to accommodate
two off-street car parking spaces.

The majority of the existing fabric and apertures of the building are to be retained
with limited rebuild where required for structural purposes. Existing materials will be
utilised as far as possible and any new materials will consist of local traditional
materials to match the existing.

The existing courtyard will serve as an amenity space for the dwelling which will be
enclosed by 1.5m high walling to match the existing building and adjacent boundary
treatments.

A new dropped kerb will be provided to the front of the car port to enable vehicular
access.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The application site consists of a part two storey, part single storey, L-shaped
building, formerly an old joinery, which fronts onto Church Side Villas directly
addressing the road. The building is characterised by the industrial apertures and
mix of sandstone and red brick materials. The two storey part of the building adjoins
the side of no.9 Little Church Lane, to the south of the site, and creates the eastern
side of an enclosed courtyard to the rear of nos.1-7 Little Church Lane.

The property is situated in Methley Church Side Conservation Area in a
predominantly residential area, and is mentioned in the Methley Church Side
Page 46



4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan, including reference to it's
mixed construction of red brick side and rear walls and front elevation of sandstone
with brick dressings. It is also quoted as a “semi-derelict” sandstone and brick
workshop marked as “Smithy” on the 1892 OS.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

08/05517/FU — Change of use of former joinery works to one 3 bedroom dwelling,
refused 05/12/08 due to highway grounds in relation to vehicular access off Church
Lane.

22/269/92/FU — Single storey front extension, refused 11/02/93.

H22/170/86 — Alterations, including part new roof and extension to form porch,
enlarged bathroom and enlarged garage to side, approved 20/10/86.

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

An application was previously submitted for change of use of the building to a
dwelling house in 2008 which was refused on highway grounds. This was due to
the proposed vehicular access being taken from Church Lane, which it was
considered would be detrimental to highway safety, due to the proximity to the
railway bridge. The applicants for the previous application were advised that access
should be taken directly off Churchside Villas.

The current application has overcome the reason for refusal of the previous
application by taking the vehicular access directly off Churchside Villas as advised
by Highways.

Further to consultation with the Council’s Design and Conservation Officers, revised
plans have been received, which retain the majority of the fabric of the building and
original apertures and incorporate design features to the proposed car port,
including curved stone to reveals on the piers and timber heads above the car port
openings, to preserve the character and appearance of the property and the
conservation area. The revised plans also seek to resolve any concerns regarding
overlooking, particularly regarding the retention of the in-filled aperture in the west
elevation facing onto Little Church Lane, which was originally proposed to be re-
opened, and the obscure glazing of the first floor window in the west elevation facing
the rear elevation of 7 Little Church Lane.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

The application was advertised by site notices posted on 10/07/09 and Neighbour
Notification Letters posted 06/07/09. The publicity period expired on 13/08/09.

Ten letters of representation have been received in relation to this application
including a letter of objection from Councillor James Lewis for the reasons as stated
in the introduction. The letters of representation from local residents consist of two
letters of comment, one of support (as the development will repair the dangerous
state of the building) and 7 letters of objection (including a joint letter from the
occupants of 1 & 2 Churchside Villas and 11 Little Church Lane, and 2 other letters
from the same person).

The seven letters of objection from local residents, express concern regarding the
following issues:

Page 47



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

e Proposed six foot fence to enclose courtyard area will prevent the occupant
of no.81 from hanging out their washing in this area, using it as a garden and
for car parking. It will also block sunlight into their property.

e Proposed bin store proposal to side of no.81 is inconsiderate and will obstruct

private right of way.

New tenants at no.3 Little Church Lane have not been consulted.

Impact on privacy.

Access is restricted by the current users of the property?

Overlooking to front of no.9 Little Church Lane from proposed opening up of

first floor aperture in west elevation.

Impact of building works on adjoining property no.9 Little Church Lane.

Increase in traffic and detriment to highway safety exiting onto Church Lane.

Corralling effect of boundary treatment to courtyard.

Obstruction of private right of way.

Potential contamination of site due to historical uses.

Impact on bats.

Service pipes underlying private right of way to front of property.

Wider context of the site e.g. junction layout etc. is not shown on submitted

plans

¢ Revised plans increase the number of bedrooms from 3 to 4, as such, the off-
street parking should be increased

¢ No guarantee that any conditions attached to a planning permission will be
adhered to in the future

e Most recent previous use was light industrial which had little impact to
residential amenity

e Vermin within the building

e Structural and general safety of building

e Although mentioned in the Conservation Area Appraisal the building is not
seen or noticed by many local residents

e If not used for light industrial use, the building should be demolished.

A letter of representation has also been submitted by the owners of the site,
Mexborough Estates, who want to emphasise the fact that they are in the process of
trying to sell the workshop following representations, largely by the Council, that the
buildings are unsafe and also used by children, for drugs and general vandalism, as
well as the possibility of vermin living in them. The intention therefore is to improve
the area, particularly at the back of the cottages. They also point out, that although
there will be unavoidable disruption during building work, this would be temporary
and the whole area would be improved when work has been completed.

The Estate state that the objections to the planning application by the current
occupiers of the cottages will be addressed by the Estate as and when the
development progresses and the land is sold.

Any material planning considerations are addressed within the Appraisal section of
the report.

It should be noted, that the recently submitted joint letter of representation, with
attached road safety document, from the occupants of 1 & 2 Churchside Villas and
11 Little Church Lane, received on 29 December 2009, requests that the road safety
document is presented to the Panel. However, any additional material issues
raised within the letter and road safety document, have been addressed in the same
way as the issues raised in the other letters of representation, in the Appraisal

section of the report, where possiblée, or X/éll be covered in the Panel Update.
age



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:
Non-statutory:

Highways comments received 14/07/09 & 05/08/09 — no objections subject to re-
graded land to front of property being adequately surfaced such that loose material
is not carried by vehicles from the vehicular access onto the highway. In addition,
the Highway Contracts Engineer must be consulted regarding the construction of
the dropped kerb.

Drainage comments received 06/07/09 & 28/09/09 — initial comments required
further information in relation to finished floor levels due to the location of the site
within Flood Risk Zone 2. Further to receipt of FRA, no objections and any on-site
drainage matters can be dealt with by the Building Inspector.

Environmental Protection comments received 16/07/09 — no objection subject to
conditions controlling noise nuisance from construction and demolition works.

PLANNING POLICIES:

Development Plan

The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS was issued
in May 2008 and includes a broad development strategy for the region setting out
regional priorities in terms of location and scale of development. No RSS policies
have a specific relevance to the application site.

Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review):

GP5 — seeks to resolved detailed planning consideration including design, access
and amenity.

BD5 — all new builds should respect their own amenity and that of their
surroundings.

BD6 — all alterations and extensions shall respect the scale, form, detailing and
materials of the original building.

BC7 — Development in Conservation Areas will normally be required in traditional
local materials.

N12 — Urban Design Principles.

N13 — new development should be of a high quality design.

N18A — Presumption against demolition of a building/parts of, which makes a
positive contribution to the character and appearance of a Conservation Area.
N18B — Consent not given for demolition in Conservation Area unless detailed plans
for redevelopment of site have been approved.

N19 — All new buildings and extensions within or adjacent to Conservation Areas
should preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the area.

N25 — boundary treatments.

N49 — Development should not threaten or impoverish wildlife or habitat resources.
T2 — Highway safety.

T24 — Parking requirements.

Local planning policy guidance documents:
Neighbourhoods for Living: A Guide for Residential Design in Leeds.
Methley Churchside Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan.

National planning policy guidance documents:

Planning Policy Statement 1: Sustainable Development

Planning Policy Guidance 15: Planning & the Historic Environment
Page 49




9.0 MAIN ISSUES

Principle of development
Impact on Conservation Area
Impact on residential amenity
Highways

Drainage

Nature conservation
Outstanding issues
Conclusion

10.0 APPRAISAL

Principle of Development

10.1 The application site consists of an unlisted building situated in Methley Churchside
Conservation Area. The proposed development involves the conversion of the main
two storey part of the building from a former commercial use, believed to be a
former joinery, to a residential dwelling house. The conversion of the property is
acceptable in principle, provided it is compliant with conservation area policies which
seek to preserve the character and appearance of the property and the conservation
area, as discussed in paragraph 12 below.

10.2  The proposed development also involves the demolition of the single storey
outbuilding, attached to the main two storey building. This is to be replaced with a
new attached, single storey building, to facilitate the provision of off-street parking
within the site, as the existing building is not sufficient in size to accommodate the
length of a vehicle.

10.3  Although there is a presumption against any demolition of a building or parts of a
building which makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of a
conservation area (policy N18A), demolition can be acceptable where it is part of a
detailed proposal for redevelopment of the site (policy N18B). As such, it is
considered that the limited demolition proposed as part of the overall scheme for
redevelopment of the site is acceptable in principle.

Impact on Conservation Area

10.4 The application site is situated within Methley Churchside Conservation Area,
towards the northern end closest to Church Lane, opposite the railway line which
forms the eastern boundary of the conservation area. The conservation area is
characterised by it’s rural village character, flat landscape and buildings which
directly address the road.

10.5 Reference is made to the former joinery building in the Conservation Area Appraisal
and Management Plan, due to it’s distinctive mixed construction of red brick and
sandstone and use as a “Smithy” in the late 19" Century. The building is unlisted,
as are the maijority of the buildings which are considered to make a positive
contribution to the character of the area.

10.6 The proposed development will retain much of the fabric of the original two storey
building, including the majority of the original apertures and features from the former

Page 50



10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

industrial use of the building, thereby preserving the character and appearance of
the original building and wider conservation area compliant with policy N19.

The proposal also involves the demolition of the attached single storey outbuilding,
which is to be replaced with a new attached single storey building, to serve as a car
port to provide off-street car parking. The existing outbuilding is insufficient in length
to accommodate a vehicle. As such, the new build will be slightly deeper to
accommodate a vehicle, but will be in keeping with the character of the original
building, reusing existing materials as far as possible. Permission would be subject
to a condition for use of traditional local materials where needed, in accordance with
policy BC7. The new build will also incorporate additional features, including stone
curves to reveals on the piers and a timber head extending above the openings to
enhance its appearance. As such, this part of the proposed development is
considered to be acceptable as part of the overall scheme for the site, which it is
considered will preserve the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Fundamentally, due to the poor state of repair of the original building, which has
been vacant for many years, the proposal, including the replacement build for off-
street parking and part re-build of the main building, will facilitate an appropriate use
of the building in this residential area, and ensure the future existence of the
building, which makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
conservation area. Accordingly, the development is welcome in conservation terms.

Impact on residential amenity

It is considered that residential use of the former joinery building would be
preferable to a commercial use, in terms of the potential impact on neighbouring
residential amenity from noise disturbance as a result of commercial activities and
the comings and goings of employees and traffic.

It is considered that the proposed conversion will not cause significant detriment to
the residential amenity of the occupants of adjacent properties around the courtyard,
from overlooking, overshadowing or over dominance. In particular, revised plans
have omitted the proposed re-opening of the first floor aperture in the west
elevation, which could have caused overlooking to the front of no.9 Little Church
Lane.

Furthermore, the distances of the windows at ground floor level facing over the
courtyard are compliant with guidance contained in Neighbourhoods for Living (NfL),
as is the distance of the bedroom windows in the south elevation facing towards
no.81 Church Lane. The distance of the bedroom window in the west elevation to
the boundary and to the secondary windows in the rear elevation of no.7 Little
Church Lane, on the opposite side of the courtyard, is substandard in terms of
guidance distances, which recommend a minimum distance of 7.5m from a
secondary window to a boundary and 15m from bedroom to bedroom windows.
However, this window is shown as obscurely glazed on the submitted plans and
would be conditioned to be fixed shut, to prevent overlooking to this aspect at first
floor level. This is considered to be an acceptable compromise, as this would not be
the only window to serve the proposed bedroom.

Although the replacement single storey car port will extend approximately 1.5m
further to the rear than the existing outbuilding, it is not considered that this will
cause significant additional impact to the amenity of the occupant of no.81 Church
Lane, due to the single storey height of the building and the maintained distance
between the two properties of approximately 6m.

Page 51



10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

The use of the existing courtyard would be substandard as an amenity space for a
new build residential property, particularly in terms of the level of privacy. However,
this application relates to the conversion of an existing, older property, in a unique
setting and therefore, warrants an exception to the normal guidance/standards.
There is also considered to be an element of “caveat emptor”, such that any
potential occupants would be able to make an informed decision as to the suitability
of the amenity space for their requirements.

Highways

Highway Planning Services have no objection to the proposed development, due to
the proposed off-street parking provision of two spaces within the attached car port,
which is compliant with guidance and should prevent an increase in on-street
parking on Churchside Villas. Any permission must however be subject to a
condition regarding the resurfacing of the strip of land to the front of the property in a
suitable material that would not cause loose material to be carried onto the highway.
In addition the Highway Contracts Engineer must be consulted regarding installation
of the dropped kerb.

It is not considered that the traffic generated by one dwelling house would cause
significant additional impact to highway safety, bearing in mind the former
commercial use of the site.

Drainage

Further to assessment of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment and consultation
with the City Council’s Mains Drainage Section, there are no objections to the
proposed development, and it is considered that the Building Inspector can deal with
on-site drainage matters.

Nature Conservation

The submitted Bat Survey confirms that there is no evidence of roosting bats in the
existing buildings. As such, the proposed development is considered to be
acceptable, subject to conditions, including the provision of bat access in the new
dwelling and the provision for nesting House Sparrows on the main dwelling and for
Swallows in the open car port.

Qutstanding issues

In response to the outstanding issues raised in the letters of representation the
following points are made:

e The previously proposed 1.8m high close boarded fence illustrated on the
original plans, has been replaced with 1.5m high brick walling, which is in
keeping with the materials of the adjacent boundary treatments within the
courtyard, and at a reduced height, will not have such an over bearing effect
on the adjacent path.

e Although the occupant of no.81 has been utilising the courtyard area to hang
out washing and park their car, the land is not within the residential curtilage
of no.81, and accordingly they have no legal right to use this land. Whilst
no.81 does not have the benefit of off-street car parking, similar to other older
properties along Church Lane and Little Church Lane, it is not considered

Page 52



appropriate or reasonable as part of this application to try and resolve an
existing parking problem.

The revised layout plan has omitted the bin store area to the side of no.81; as
such there will be no obstruction of the private right of way along this strip of
land. Bin storage for the proposed dwelling house will be contained within
the courtyard. All of the other properties, except no.81, have front and rear
yards where they can and do store their bins, as withessed by the Planning
Officer during the site visits. No.81 has land immediately to the rear of the
property where bins can be placed, even though the area is not enclosed. As
such, it is not considered that the proposed development will result in the
presence of 15 bins to the side of no.81.

The issue of any potential impact of building works on adjoining property no.9
Little Church Lane, is a private civil matter to be dealt with between the
relevant parties.

Due to the nature of the proposed development, it should not have any
detrimental impact on any service works that might be sited beneath the strip
of land to the front of the property, as it only involves minor regarding and re-
surfacing.

A Neighbour Notification Letter was sent to no.3 Little Church Lane, the Local
Planning Authority cannot be reasonably expected to know that new tenants
have since moved into a property. However, a letter of representation has
been received from occupants of no.3.

The issue of contamination at the site has been dealt with by the Council’s
Land Contamination Team, permission will be subject to a condition to
confirm the use of potential contaminants within the building.

Although the submitted plans may be limited in terms of showing the wider
context of the site, e.g. the nearest junction layout etc., the assessment of the
proposal by Highway Planning Services is not based solely on the plans and
information submitted by the applicants. They also use the City Council’s
own map/highway databases and carry out a site visit, in order to carry out a
full assessment of the site and proposed development.

The increase in the proposed number of bedrooms within the dwelling house
from 3 to 4, does not require an increase in the number of proposed off-street
car parking spaces. Two off-street car parking spaces is considered to be
acceptable for a 4 bedroom dwelling house.

The structural safety of the building in it's present state is a health and safety
issue. The structural implications of the proposed development e.g. the re-
opening of former apertures, is a matter for building control. Although the
building has fallen into a state of disrepair over a number of years, the
proposed development if implemented, would resolve this issue.

The presence of vermin is an Environmental Health issue and not a material
planning consideration. Again, development of the property should also
resolve this issue.

It is stated that there is no guarantee that any conditions attached to a
planning permission are adhered to into the future. Conditions, where
necessary, would be worded such that they must remain in effect thereafter
for the lifetime of the development, and any breach of the conditions will then
be dealt with by the Council’s Compliance Department.

The amount that a building is seen or noticed by local residents does not
determine it’s inclusion or importance in a Conservation Area. The building is
identified as a positive structure in the Appraisal and is one of a group of
buildings which together form a historic record and make a positive
contribution to the overall character of the village.

Page 53



e Demolition of the building would require Conservation Area Consent to
demolish and due to the identification of the building as a positive structure in
the Conservation Area Appraisal, demolition is likely to be resisted.

e Although the most recent previous use of the building did not generate a
significant impact on neighbouring residential amenity, the use was still B2
general industrial use and as such, if the use of the building was
recommenced within this use class, it could be a more intensive B2 use, with
an increase in activities, employees and vehicle movements etc., which
would have a greater impact on residential amenity. The change of use of
the building to a single dwelling house, it is considered would not result in as
significant a potential impact on residential amenity.

CONCLUSION

11.0 For the above reasons, it is considered that the proposed development is
acceptable in principle and will preserve the character and appearance of the
Methley Churchside Conservation Area. The scheme also does not raise concerns
relating to residential amenity, highway safety or nature conservation and as such is
recommended for approval subject to conditions specified.

Background Papers:

Application file: 09/02871/FU
Certificate of Ownership: The Trustees of Viscount Pollington

Page 54



5 e | 0I5y e
oL o

%4 {ONINNYId) Nv'1d LIS G3S0d0Hd

(d71 31193408 d OQVHd HO-)

AFIHLIN
'SYTIIA BQISHIUNHD ‘AHANIOF Q10 IHL

282146 LE610 e fsuoyd  * oo uedubisapieiuse@ol rews
V39 £257° AGoUIap * BCi§ UISO *1901S USIH * 9SNOH ASIuSY

P17 suelnsuo) ubisaq Asjusy

‘0314043 38 0L SAIINVAILISIO ANY
*STINTWWOI HHOM ANY JUOJFE HOLIVHINOD AD
31IS NO G3XIFHD 38 01 SNOISNINIA TIV

37v2S LON Oa

AMVANNOS 3LS _ _ _ _
SALVDIANT 3NITNIONE

A3SIAIH 3LIS
40 3AIS HANOS OL1TYM AHYONNOE MAN 40 3NIT

60/01/62 2
NYd NO NAMMOHS 34O LS NIF
6016 8

Q3LVOIANI TI¥YM ALCNNOS NDIHE WWOOS

*60/8/9 SHINNY1 AS GI1LSINDIH NOILLYIWHO-IN!
LNIYdLOOd

ONILSIXT LINS OL GINDISIATH DNIAUNE G35040Hd
d300Y NOILYWHOANI AJAHNS

B0/8/01 v

# LLg20/60

Page 55

NORTH



Mulberry \ 1T
Bridge Pa*:hl“_“j/’

Gardens

Allotment
Gardens

Recreation
Ground

;avilion

AR
v
e
[L W
L
o
L2
-~ -
[+
by L e
. iz
L
.
v
\
v
v
\
v
[
PR
[SRY ‘
(Y
\
Vo
Lo
PR
v
'

EAST PLANS PANEL |

Scale 1/1500

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
This map is based upon the_ Or_dn_ance Survey's Digitgl data with the permission o_fthe Or_d_nance Sur_vey on behalf of the Col f Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

of the Controller of He
(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567 2008 ) Paoe 56




Agenda ltem 10

eed S Originator: G Read
m L Tel:0113 222 4409

- CI TY COUNCIL

2

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL EAST

Date: 14" January 2009

Subject: APPLICATION 09/04229/FU - Single storey rear extension and enlarged

balcony with covered area to rear (other single storey rear extension is Permitted
Development) at Oaktree House, 9 Blackmoor Lane, Bardsey.

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE

Ms K Plews 28.09.2009 23.11.2009
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:
Harewood

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to the specified conditions:

1. Time limit
2. External walling and roofing materials to match
3. Erection and retention of side obscure glazed screen

Details of conditions to be deferred and delegated to officers.

Reasons for Approval: The application is considered to comply with policies GP5 and BD6

of the UDP Review 2006 as it is respectful of the host dwelling and has no significant impact

on residential amenity and having regard to all other material considerations, as such the

application is considered acceptable.

1.0 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 The application is reported to Panel for determination at the request of Councillor
Rachael Procter as the window design is considered to be at odds with the host

dwelling and due to the impact of the extension on the surrounding area.

Page 57



2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

PROPOSAL:

The development is set at the rear but is in two distinct parts. The first part on the
western side consists of a single storey rear extension and constitutes Permitted
Development so does not form part of this application and is not considered in this
report.

On the eastern side of the rear elevation a further single storey extension is
proposed , this links with some first floor alterations, including an enlarged balcony.
The rear extension will measure 2.8m in width and project 0.7m. Above this the
existing bedroom will actually be reduced by 1.3m in depth making the whole
bedroom flush with the main rear elevation . Large sliding doors are proposed on
the rear elevation. These will open up to an enlarged balcony (a smaller balcony is
already in existence) projecting 2.9m at the rear and measuring 5.8m in width. The
original side wall of the bedroom will remain. An obscure glazed screen is to be
positioned along the east elevation of the balcony after the bedroom wall to screen
all remaining views to the east.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The application site consists of a detached property set in the green belt. It is in a
fairly isolated position, with only one close neighbour set to the east, to the other
side and the rear are open fields. The house is rendered with adequate parking to
the front and a detached garage set in the south east corner. At the rear the
property has a flat roof two storey extension on the eastern side that enlarges the
master bedroom. From here access is provided to an existing small balcony.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

31/355/96/FU - Two storey side extension conservatory to rear and detached double
garage to side (approved).

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

Following discussions with the applicant and agent an obscure glazed screen will
now be placed on the eastern side of the balcony to provide screening.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

Bardsey Parish Council — Objection

Design is incongruous to main house. Obscure screen would help with privacy (this
has been added and a new plan sent to the Parish Council) but would not help
design. Work has already started on site (it is understood this is on the single storey
extension that does not require permission).

The neighbours at 7 Blackmoor Lane have also objected. They support the single
storey extensions but not the first floor / balcony development as they consider this
will harm their privacy and appear out of character.

CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:

None.

Page 58



8.0

8.1

8.3

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1.

10.2.

PLANNING POLICIES:

The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS was issued
in May 2008 and includes a broad development strategy for the region, setting out
regional priorities in terms of location and scale of development. As the RSS is a
strategic document, it is considered that there are no specific policies which are
relevant to this application.

Local — Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006) Policies:

GP5: Gives advice in relation to new development stating that all new development
should not have a detrimental impact on amenity.

BD6: Gives advice in relation to extensions to residential properties which states
that extensions should respect the scale, form, detailing and materials of the original
building.

N33: Except in very special circumstances approval will only be given in the Green
Belt for limited extensions or alterations.

MAIN ISSUES

Green Belt

Townscape / Design and Character.
Privacy

Overshadowing / Over dominance.
Representations

APPRAISAL
Green Belt

Policy N33 of the Unitary Development Plan and guidance contained within PPG2
states that limited house extensions within the green belt can be considered
appropriate development provided that they do not result in additions that are
disproportionate to the original dwelling. The Local Authority normally determines a
50% increase in volume of the original dwelling to be the maximum permitted within
the green belt. In this case the proposed balcony does not create any real additional
volume due to its nature, also as the bedroom is being reduced in mass to allow for
a larger balcony the over all volume of the property is actually reduced by this part of
the proposal. For this reason there is considered no harm to the green belt in this
case.

Townscape / Design and Character

The balcony is set to the rear and as such will have no real impact on the
streetscene. In design terms the balcony is a large addition, however, the principle
for a balcony in this position has already been established as an existing balcony is
in place. Also, the increase in size of the balcony is actually created by reducing the
size of the bedroom. The large glazed doors do have a visual impact on the rear
elevation but as this does not face the streetscene they are not considered unduly
detrimental and are more commonplace on the rear elevation of properties. The
development is well designed and retains the side wall of the existing dwelling and
creates a new flush rear elevation, removing the flat roof addition. Materials are
proposed to match the existing and these will be conditioned.
Page 59



10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

11.0

12.0

121

Privacy

The balcony projects further than the existing and will result in views being possible
to be seen to the sides as well as the rear view currently available. For this reason,
even though it is acknowledged that the existing garage and neighbouring side
gable makes it difficult to see into the one property to the east a screen will be
erected on this side to reduce the perception of overlooking. It is also noted that the
neighbour has a large amount of foliage along the shared boundary, but as this is
not within the applicants control it can not be conditioned for retention, therefore, a
screen is considered necessary.

Overshadowing / Over dominance

Due to the orientation of the site, location of the applicant’s property and the scale of
the development, there will be no detrimental overshadowing. Similarly, as the
balcony is set away from the shared boundary it is not conisdered to be overbearing
in this case.

Representations

The objections from the neighbours and Ward Member involving the design of the
scheme and potential overlooking have been discussed in the above appraisal. It is
not considered that the proposals cause any significant harm given their location
and design.

CONCLUSION

Consideration has been given to all material planning considerations and it is
considered that the proposals raise no significant concerns in relation to design or

amenity and as such subject to the appropriate conditions it is recommended that
planning permission be granted.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Application and history files.
Certificate A signed by the applicant declaring that all land is owned by applicant.

Page 60



rveron a0

uB|sap Jousju| pue [8IN3O8Y

woo'joepniasubjsapbhos

1yose
lrews

SSEELS LEGLO :xed /9L

Va6 LIS spaa
)omsa) 1se3

aueT [00YdS ‘@SNOH 20J8YNID

$29|Al19S ubjsaq

UOHDAIT  2PIS

W yzig7yL on oNimvaa

:@3INI3IHO

Byd :A8 Nmvea

60°6-0l :3iva

05-1 :3os

SMITd SHW B YW
JUEREN B

A3SQuvE "INV HOOWMIV1E 6
ISNOH FFILAVO

ss3yaav

3ISNOH d3HIVL3A
01 SNOIVYILTY TVNYILN
3 SNOISN3LX3 d3S0d0ud

ERIREY

UOIDA2[3  JD2Y

S|

F— A =~

Corpormn [N
mi\‘\{w
oy &
.M;_- T
H;

vy 3PS

: N—
= ~
240

SO wugrn s

g e W
poor1-2) .Eu“*\\\“\s\mki\ab uixwxﬁ s
o -

IME1D SI4) 110 oje2s 10U 0Q

s
o
i R,

aisiAd

600 ACN - €

IONNOD ALID SA3FT

@ORON UO|SI08Q O} Joj81 9SEd|d

4 622%0/60

S31ON

o XD
= ,

B e 2
P A

J00l3 4513

woospaq

P
8

\}

P -t 72 4
Lo goype 22T
227

=l

S
¥
g A
\
N
uy
il
3

Bt ez &

Qg cmeme D AEE LB AU

ot G T s T DAV 55
B Ao s A
T
&R e f Zaps A v
sk g ey

T il
=

L.

Z N\ sz
| ﬂ BETLH 47
e \n‘s\\a\\t\ | Py 754

POt 7 o Z
LR

D\\“\ﬂ\ v
A= o MMMN\»“M_\ SIS
e G e

S ey ioay ey FHAEF ©

—o
Ty A A A ﬁ

g o TOREAE

I

I

A O] cwemam 1_
S0 N7 % |

H
i G

>
ey penehD oty s /sy |y a—
Sy A St spas o Rl m i

e o

V2 id

g

v R 6
A ‘ ﬁ\\vﬂ%ﬂ“ﬁﬁ\xﬁﬁlﬂx
=t 7z 1
=75 A— Zal -iv i
WK U=z
i w_c 0 =17 |7 S
Eo

<Y1 1 g >,
T—T Mﬁ\vﬁxﬁn\www VW\H«WW@W«.‘S\N\NW l.ffnh .«iv“‘ R
8 IS5 e Ny
e N | s
- T oszr 1

|

I v

[l —A oo punosg
LS

_ |G um\;sMW

¥ i

P -|
i |[N/ |Mu|ﬂw —tFf |
AT =l o
Bus O c
I __ L 27T
| B,
U LHE || I
|
e =2 i Buiny
e
Buiup e
®
"
_ — A m
I Tm* 7
o ~

Page 61




Haighfield
Caravan Park

‘ \ 09/04229/FU
570

Q
-

o
AN

EAST PLANS PANEL ...

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey o half of the Copfroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedings. ﬁeage éé

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567




Agenda ltem

eed S Originator: K Sandhu
m L Tel:0113 222 4409

- CI TY COUNCIL

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
PLANS PANEL EAST
Date: 14" January 2009

Subject: APPLICATION 09/04286/FU — Part two storey, part single storey rear
extension and two storey side extension at 164 Ring Road, Halton, Leeds 15.

11

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE
Mr C Barraclough 1.10.09 26.11.09
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Temple Newsam

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

GRANT PERMISSION subject to the specified conditions below:

1. Time limit

2. External walling and roofing materials to match
3. No insertion of windows to side

4. Obscure glazing to side bathroom window

Details of conditions to be deferred and delegated to officers.

Reasons for Approval:. The proposed part two storey part single storey extension to the
rear and part two storey side extension complies with the planning guidelines set out in the
Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006) and the Supplementary Planning Guidance
document ‘Neighbourhoods for Living’, and therefore it is recommended that planning
permission be granted.

Page 63



1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0

INTRODUCTION:

The application is reported to Panel for determination at the request of Councillor
Lyons and Councillor Schofield due to the objections from the immediate neighbour
at No. 162 Ring Road.

PROPOSAL:

The applicant seeks full planning permission to construct a part two storey part
single storey rear extension and a separate two storey side extension to their
detached property. The rear extension would project 3m from the host property and
measure 7.8m in width with a mono pitched roof over the single storey part which will
join to the side of the proposed two storey extension. The proposal would create a
kitchen/diner and family room at ground floor . The two storey part of the rear
extension would be set down from the main roof ridge by 1m with a gable roof. The
two storey element would measure 4.1m in length, project 3m from the host property,
creating an extended bedroom. In terms of fenestration patio doors and windows are
proposed in the rear elevation and windows along the northern side elevation. The
existing dormer on the rear elevation will be removed.

The side extension would project 1.2m from the side wall of the host property in line
with the existing extension creating a WC, store and enlarged utility at ground floor
and an extension to the existing bathroom and staircase at first floor level.

The distance from the two storey extension to the shared boundary with 162 Ring
Road would be 5m, a distance of 1m from the single storey element and 21m to the
rear boundary. There would be a distance 1.7m from the two storey rear and side
extension to the neighbouring property at 166 Ring Road.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

The application site is a detached property with a gable roof, finished in pebble dash
and has a side extension which is set back from the main wall of the house, which
appears to be part of the original design of the dwelling. There is a medium sized
front garden which is mainly hard standing and a generous sized rear garden. The
property has an existing dormer window to the rear. The boundary treatment
between the host and neighbouring property at no. 162 Ring Road consists of a
1.8m high close boarded fence. A large detached garage at the neighbouring
property no. 166 Ring Road constructed of breeze block forms the rear boundary
treatment with the host property.

The neighbouring property at 162 Ring Road is a bungalow and has a detached
garage to the rear garden and a conservatory /porch located on rear elevation. The
other neighbour at 166 Ring Road has a two storey rear extension and a part two
storey part single storey side extension and a large detached garage to the rear of
their property.

The surrounding area is predominately residential in character with a mix of
detached, semi-detached houses and bungalows of various designs and
appearances.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

Page 64



4.1 None

5.0 HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

5.1 The application was originally submitted for a full width 3 storey rear extension and
full height side extension. This was considered excessive and overdominant in
relation to its immediate neighbours. Discussions with the applicants agent have
resulted in the current proposals being submitted.

6.0 PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

The neighbours at 162 and 172 Ring Road and 3 Baronsmead object to the
proposal. The objection letters raise the following issues:

Available light to neighbouring property reduced.

Roof of extension too high in close proximity to the boundary.
Extension will be difficult to construct without encroachment
Neighbours will be overwhelmed and overshadowed

Plans do not accurately reflect on site situation .

Application should be decided by Members.

Loss of value to properties

7.0 CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:
71 None.
8.0 PLANNING POLICIES:

8.1 The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS was issued
in May 2008 and includes a broad development strategy for the region, setting out
regional priorities in terms of location and scale of development. As the RSS is a
strategic document, it is considered that there are no specific policies which are
relevant to this application.

8.3 Local — Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006) Policies:
GP5: Gives advice in relation to new development stating that all new development
should not have a detrimental impact on amenity.
BD6: Gives advice in relation to extensions to residential properties which states
that extensions should respect the scale, form, detailing and materials of the original
building.

Neighbourhoods for Living: A Guide for Residential Design in Leeds
“The scale, massing and height of proposed development should be considered in
relation to its surroundings.”

9.0 MAIN ISSUES

Townscape /Design and Character
Privacy

Overshadowing

Dominance

sON =

Page 65



5.

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Representations

APPRAISAL

Townscape/Design and Character

The design of the extensions are complementary to the existing dwelling in terms of
scale, form and detailing. The use of matching materials would help blend the
extensions with the main dwelling. The roof of the proposed rear two storey
extension would be set down from the ridge of the main house by 1m, it is therefore
considered that the extension would be subordinate to the original house at the rear.
The side extension , whilst at full height would form a continuation of the host
dwelling but is of a scale and design that is respectful to the host property. The main
mass of the extension would be to the rear of the property, given that the extensions
would be set away from neighbouring boundaries, and there are existing extensions
to one of the neighbouring properties, it is not considered to be detrimental to the
original dwelling or the present street scene as the current visual gaps between
properties will be maintained. The removal of the rear dormer is an improvement on
the existing situation. The proposed development complies with the Supplementary
Planning Guidance in ‘Neighbourhoods for Living: A Guide for Residential Design in
Leeds'.

Privacy

The windows proposed to the front and rear look onto the applicant’'s own gardens
with a sufficient distance (approximately 21m) to the rear boundary. Windows are
proposed within the side elevation of the two storey side extension at ground floor
level housing a WC and utility and at first floor level for a landing, however a planning
condition will be attached to the approval stating that they shall be obscure glazed, to
prevent any overlooking of the neighbouring property.

Overshadowing / Overdominance

The two storey element of the proposal is set away from the neighbours at 166 Ring
Road by 1.7m and given that they have an existing two storey rear and side
extension, similar to that which is proposed as part of this application, it is considered
that the impact of the proposal in terms of over shadowing and over dominance would
be minimal. The two storey rear extension would be set away from the neighbhouring
bungalow (No. 162) by 5m. The section of the proposed extension which will be
closest to the neighbouring property at 162 Ring Road will be the single storey rear
extension. However, given its modest size and height and that there is an existing
detached garage close to the boundary, it is not considered that any significant
overshadowing impact will occur from this part of the proposal.

Representations

Nearby neighbours at No. 162 Ring Road have raised concerns regarding
overdominance and overshadowing in relation to the proposed extension. These
issues have been considered in the above appraisal . In relation to the other matters
raised it is considered given the distances to the boundaries that will remain that the
extensions proposed could easily be accommodated without any requirement to enter
third party land . The granting of planning permission does not give any rights of entry
onto third party land. The plans provided are considered to be accurate . It is
accepted that the neighbours conservatory is not shown on these plans however
Page 66



10.5

11.0

12.0

121

consideration of this fact has been made through visiting the neighbouring property
and viewing the application site from the neighbours garden. The value of property is
not a material planning consideration.

The scheme has been reduced following discussions with the Local Planning
Authority. The two storey rear extension has been reduced and set away from the
neighbouring bungalows boundary (n0.162 ) by 5m in order to reduce its impact on
them in terms of over dominance. A single storey extension has been proposed along
the elevation closest to that property instead. It is considered given that the extension
will be located adjacent to the garage of No 162 and only a small portion of roof will
be visible above the garage that the amendments made have overcome the Local
Planning Authority’s concerns in relation to dominance and overshadowing.

CONCLUSIONS

It is considered in light of the above that the proposed part two storey part single
storey rear extension and part two storey side extension meets the requirements of
the relevant policies and guidelines and will not have a significant impact on the
amenity of nearby occupiers and is respectfully designed as such is acceptable in
planning terms. Approval is recommended subject to conditions.

Background Papers:

Application file.
Certificate A signed by the applicant declaring that all land is owned by applicant.

Page 67



e |

el JECTIVER

L ysoN ojepyIW

T e | g 2! mm.
e | 60/60 | 1V ® 0021

T = | 00K ‘061

pasodouq sy

SUOIDAR|3 ¥ UD|d 2HS 'SUD|d

ybnojopuung uw

Jog

3VL GIST Sp227 ‘U040
pooy Bury 97 04 uoisuaix]
iy

up|d 4004 4407 pasodougy

upjd J00|4 pUnoJg pasodo.q

0G:I 3TVIS - SN 1d 4004

6002 4495 Bz BuUDIq 403 PaLIIWGNG | v -
pioa pioa
9 WOo¥a3g
Papuaixg A WOQUHLY:
L= E— - o .Eﬁ._ov:__\ﬁ KD g o -
r . lhied L= |@:
i i f—
Q3SIAZY L ' S R— == —|//
| I 1 0.
6002 AON €2 i 1L // — o
/) |
BIION UOISIdaQ 0} 12)as asealg —=
TIONNOD ALID SA331 Sﬂwmnmw % (AN L=
| RS : BN
| ! , WOO¥HLvE [ T
_H [ Q o h . fz rq E.@ —
— R e | o
i B WoO¥q38 ﬁ_‘_m._.m H/ ,=\ Lﬁ
pioa / 4 N
TN di
L N A = =i
H
WO0O¥a3s
pepliasx3
- T
F F
—
002:T 2|9S - NV1d 31IS
| o
I
7 U0I4DA2|F 452 pasododq U014DAZ|3 Y4nog pasodouy U014DA|3 4503 pasodoug U014DAR|3 Y4uop pasodouy
I




PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey gn behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Offi
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedingsﬁage ég
(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Agenda ltem 12

Originator:  Victoria Hinchliff
Walker
m Tel: 0113 395-1343

- CI TY COUNCIL

2

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
PLANS PANEL EAST
Date: 14/01/10

Subject: APPLICATION 09/04313/FU —Detached stable block/hay store and ménage to
rear of dwelling. Holly Croft, Sandhills, Thorner, Leeds, LS14.

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE

J Shaw 05.10.2009 30.11.2009
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:
Harewood

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

—

. Standard Time limit.

2. All areas associated with the equestrian use hereby approved shall be used solely for the
enjoyment of the occupants of Holly Croft only, and shall not be used for or by any
commercial venture or for the purposes of livery, riding schools or commercial breeding.

3. Materials to match existing house.

4. Use of the ménage hereby approved shall not commence until details of the proposed
construction, which shall include all details of boundary treatments, levels and surfacing
materials, as well as details of how surface water discharges will be dealt with such that
there is no increase in Greenfield rates of run-off, are submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

5. Details of extent of residential curtilage to be agreed.

Reasons for approval: The proposed use is considered to be appropriate to the Green Belt

and the scale, size and form of the proposed buildings is considered to be acceptable for the

level of use being proposed. The design and appearance are rural in nature and given the

limited views into the site, the proposed development is not considered to be detrimental to

the character and appearance of the Conservation Area or Special Landscape Area. The

proposal is considered to comply with policies GP5, N19, N33, N37, T2, BD5 and GB13 of
Page 71



the UDPR and to guidance contained within the Thorner Conservation Area Appraisal and
Management Plan and to government guidance contained within PPG2, PPS7 and PPG15.

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

3.2

3.3

3.4

INTRODUCTION:

This application is reported to Plans Panel following a request from Councillor Alec
Shelbrooke in his capacity as a Ward Councillor for the area and on the grounds that
the development will encroach into the Green Belt.

PROPOSAL:

The application is made in full, and seeks permission for the erection of a stabling block
with attached hay store and tack room and the laying out of a ménage for the
exercising of ponies/horses.

The stable block measures 7.8m wide x 9.9m deep x 4.2m to the ridge. It will be
constructed from brick in the front half, with the rear half being fully open to form the
hay store. A pitched roof will be supported at the rear by steel columns. Two stables
are provided.

The proposed ménage measures 20.4m x 34.5m and will be constructed from a typical
rubberised surface made from recycled tyres and overlaid on sand and hardcore to
provide a permeable surface.

An area of the hardstanding will be laid for the creation of a turning area for vehicle and
horsebox.

The proposal will also involve change of use of a strip of land which is currently in
lawful agricultural use. This will change to equestrian use.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

Sandhills is a linear settlement extending from the south end of Thorner, stretching out
towards Bramley Grange close to the A64 York Rd. The settlement consists of a
number of large houses set in large plots on either side of the road interspersed with
farm buildings. This is a rural area with agricultural fields surrounding residential plots.

Holly Croft is a detached house on the eastern side of Sandhills. The property is two-
storey with hipped roof and gardens laid out to the south and eastern sides. A
driveway access runs along the northern boundary giving access to the house, garages
and a small, private use office building. To the rear of the site is a grassed paddock,
separated from the residential unit by a post and wire fence. A large area of
hardstanding adjacent to outbuildings to the rear has been constructed, which crosses
the boundary between the garden and the agricultural land. The site is relatively well
screened on all sides by hedging.

To the north and east of the site are agricultural fields. To the south is another
residential plot, although the house is sited some 70m plus away from Holly Croft and
the two sites are separated by mature hedging. To the east is another dwelling, but
this is set well back from the road and again is heavily screened by mature trees and
hedging.

The site lies within designated Green Belt, an area of special landscape and is within
the Conservation Area of Thorner.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

Aside from a number of household extensions there has been one previous planning

application on the site (reference 33/639/04/FU) for a change of use of

paddock/agricultural land to domestic hardstanding to the rear of Holly Croft. This was

refused on 21/01/05 on the grounds that it conflicted with Green Belt policy and that it

had a detrimental impact on the Special Landscape Area. It should be noted that in
Page 72



4.2

4.3

5.2

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

this application the change of use was to domestic uses which is inappropriate within
the Green Belt. The current application is for an equestrian use.

In 2006 enforcement action was commenced (reference 06/01359/UOPS2) for the
excavation to land to rear of dwelling, this case has been closed with no further action
being taken as a planning application was submitted.

Further enforcement action commenced in 2007 (reference 07/01543/UCU3) for the
extension of domestic curtilage into paddock and the extension of existing hardstanding
area within the paddock area which has acted as a turning circle for residents vehicles.
This case is still open, and this planning application is the result of negotiations that
have taken place on this matter.

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

Enforcement officers have undertaken extensive dialogue with the applicant in recent
years, which has culminated in the submission of this application to regularise the use
of the land and seek permission for the unauthorised hardstanding and erection of the
stable buildings.

During the course of the planning application the applicant has been asked to provide
details of the proposed ménage including levels and surfacing materials and to
consider slightly increasing the size of the stables and ménage in order to better
accommodate larger animals. The applicant has indicated that the ménage is not
currently needed for use, but that the area will be fenced off with a view to installing it in
a few years. The stables have been marginally increased in size to provide more
suitable accommodation for larger animals, they are still within the recommended sizes
for horse provision.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

A site notice of an application for planning permission, which is a departure and which
affects the character of the Conservation Area was posted on the 4™ November 2009.
Deadline for comments expired on the 25th of November 2009.

Ward Councillor Alec Shelbrooke objects to application on the grounds that the
proposals encroach into the green belt. Please see the appraisal below.

Thorner Parish Council commented that they query whether the development is
appropriate for the green belt location. Please see the appraisal below.

One letter of support from a neighbour has been received.
CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:

Highways Officers have advised that due to limited sightlines at the access point the
proposal can only be supported if it is for the personal use of the occupants of the
dwelling house.

Response: the size of the stables proposed and of the ménage are such that it would
be unsuitable for any form of commercial activity. The applicant has also further
advised that the stables are for the housing of his daughter's ponies, and that he
accepts any condition requiring a restriction to family use only.

The Group Surveyor advises that the proposed stables are if anything slightly on the
small side but that the size of both stables and the paddock is acceptable for two small
ponies. The proposed hay store is acceptable and the proposed ménage is again on
the small side.

Response: the applicant fractionally increased the size of stable so that it could
accommodate a horse in future years.

PLANNING POLICIES:

Page 73



8.1 Development Plan — Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) and adopted Unitary
Development Plan ( Review) (UDPR)

8.1.1 There are no policies of specific relevance within the RSS.
8.1.2 Within the UDPR, the following policies apply.
8.1.3 GPS5 - general planning considerations

8.1.4 N13 - design for the building should be of high quality and have regard to the
character and appearance of surroundings.

8.1.5 N19 - all new buildings or extensions within or adjacent to a Conservation Area
should preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the area.

8.1.6 N24 - development proposals that abut the green belt should achieve assimilation
into the landscape.

8.1.7 N32 - Green Belt designation.

8.1.8 N33 - approval in the Green Belt will only be given for “.... essential facilities for
outdoor sports and outdoor recreation”.

8.1.9 N37 -development in Special Landscape Areas will be acceptable, provided it
does not seriously harm the character and appearance of the landscape.

8.1.10 N37A - all new development or change of land use within the countryside should
have regard to the character of the landscape in which it is set and contribute
positively to restoration objectives where appropriate.

8.1.11 T2 -highway and access issues
8.1.12 GB13 - stables and other equestrian development will only be permitted where:

¢ That element is essential to outdoor equestrian activity and is subservient to
that activity; and

e Serious harm does not arise to the highway and bridleway network, visual
amenity, the operation of neighbouring land uses or the living conditions of
adjacent occupiers.

8.2 Relevant supplementary guidance

8.2.1 Thorner Conservation Area Appraisal and Management Plan approved 12/01/09.
This document notes that Sandhills acts as wooded and rural corridor into the
main settlement of Thorner and that predominant building materials are local
sandstone, slates, pan-tiles, and stone slates.

8.3 Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements

8.3.1 PPG2 - Green Belt — one of the objectives of designating Green Belt is to provide
opportunity for outdoor sport and recreation, there is no differentiation between
public and private provision of recreational facilities. The construction of new
buildings in the green belt is inappropriate unless they are for e.g. essential
facilities for sport and recreation. Essential facilities should be genuinely required
for the use of land which preserves the character of the Green Belt and which do
not preclude the purpose of including land in it. Possible examples of such
facilities include small stables for outdoor sport and recreation.

8.3.2 PPG15 - Historic Environment

8.3.3 PPS7 - Sustainable Development in Rural Areas — Horse riding and other
equestrian activities are popular forms of recreation in the countryside and can fit
in well with farming activities and help to diversify rural economies.

9 MAIN ISSUES
Page 74



9.1 Principle of use.

9.2 Appropriateness in the Green Belt.

9.3 Impact on Special Landscape Area.

9.4 Impact on Conservation Area.

9.5 Highway and access issues.
9.6 Otherissues.

10 APPRAISAL

10.1 Principle of Use

10.1.1

10.1.2

10.1.3

The red line boundary encompasses two long standing existing uses - an
agricultural use to the eastern end and on the western side (and the majority of
the site) the residential use associated with the house and its curtilage. It should
be noted that the paddock area has not been used for agricultural purposes for
some years and is clearly separated from surrounding fields by mature hedging.

The construction of the stables and the ménage, although it will be used by the
family only, is best described as an equestrian use. The paddock is to be retained
in its current use as grazing for the ponies. This application if approved will
therefore create an area to the eastern edge of the residential curtilage that has a
lawful equestrian use. A condition is proposed to control the extent of the
residential curtilage and to prevent the inclusion of the proposed stables and
menage into the curtilage.

Given the current lack of agricultural activity on the site and the fact that an
equestrian use is an appropriate rural use then this change of use is not objected
to.

10.2 Appropriateness in the Green Belt

10.2.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

10.2.5

One of the objectives of designating land as Green Belt is the use for outdoor
sport and recreation purposes, into which an equestrian use falls. There is no
differentiation between whether the recreation use is a purely private facility or
open to the public. The use of the land for equestrian purposes is therefore
considered to be appropriate in the Green Belt and complies with policy N33 of
the UDPR and guidance in PPG2.

When considering development associated with appropriate uses it is necessary
to consider whether the facilities are needed and whether the structures are of a
scale that is commensurate with the use. The aim should be to achieve minimal
impact on the openness of the green belt.

The proposed stables, attached hay store and the ménage will provide for two
small ponies, which is consistent with the use purely for family purposes. The
stable block has been designed within the specifications for such animals and is
not considered to be excessive in scale or form.

An area of hardstanding is also created which provides a turning circle for a
vehicle and horsebox. This is considered necessary as the existing access has
poor visibility and any reversing of vehicles out of this access would endanger
highway safety.

Given that the limited size, form and design of the facilities being provided is
commensurate with the small-scale domestic use proposed, then it is considered
that the proposal complies with guidance in PPG2 and with policy GB13 of the
UDPR.

10.3 Impact on Special Landscape Area

Page 75



10.3.1

10.3.2

10.3.3

10.3.4

The proposed building is a small single storey structure, the front half of the
building is divided into two stables with traditional doors recessed to provide a
porch area. The rear half of the building is designed as an open haystore with
pitched roof supported on steel columns. The building is proposed to be built from
bricks to match the house and the garage with a concrete tiled roof, again to
match the existing house and garage.

The proposed stable will be seen in conjunction with existing low-level buildings
on the site and will largely be screened by the existing mature hedging on the
northern boundary. Long distance views into the site are very limited due to the
hedging as well. The building is of a design that is quite typical for the intended
use and would not look out of place in this rural area.

Given the small-scale nature of the proposal along with the design and use of
matching materials it is not considered that the proposal is detrimental to the
character or appearance of the Special Landscape Area and that it does comply
with policy N37.

The proposed ménage will be surfaced with recycled rubber chips which are likely
to be in a grey/black colour. Such surfaces can be relatively intrusive in open
areas, however in this instance it is considered that the site is largely hidden from
views and further hedging along the eastern boundary could help to further reduce
impact. Subject to appropriate landscaping the scheme could be adequately
screened with no detrimental impact on landscape.

10.4 Impact on conservation area

10.4.1

The Conservation Area Appraisal notes that this area is rural in character. The
nature and appearance of the proposed stable and the ménage is not considered
to be out of character and it is relatively well hidden and screened from general
views. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with policy N19.

10.5 Highway and Access Issues

10.5.1

10.5.2

The proposed access into the site will be used for both the domestic vehicles and
vehicles associated with the equestrian use. There is substandard visibility at this
access point in both directions along Thorner Lane, and for this reason the use of
the access for a general/commercial equestrian use is not accepted (as this would
lead to an increase in use of the access point). However use of the access for
equestrian purposes associated with the family only, is considered to be
acceptable as it would not lead to any greater increase in use of the access than
already exists. It is considered that a condition can be applied to any permission
granted to ensure that the use of the land remains for the family's enjoyment only.

Parking for a horsebox plus turning is provided within the site and there will be no
loss of existing parking provision for the domestic use. The proposal, subject to
the above condition therefore complies with policy T2 of the UDPR.

10.6 Other Issues

10.6.1

10.6.2

Concern has been raised with regard to the potential for the extended hard
surfacing to cause flooding issues due to the location of a natural spring in the
rear paddock area. An area of hardstanding already exists and although unlawful
it is not much larger than that which already exists for the domestic use in terms of
vehicle circulation space and parking.

Details of the ménage have been provided and show use of a recycle rubber chip
layer over sand and hardcore. This is designed to allow drainage through to the
soils below so that surface water does not collect which could be dangerous. Itis
therefore not considered that the proposed development will detrimentally
increase surface water run-off that will result in local flooding. Furthermore the

Page 76



development is surrounded by open grassed areas which would absorb any such
run-off.

11 CONCLUSION

11.1 The proposed use is considered to be appropriate in the Green Belt and associated
buildings can be considered as essential facilities for this appropriate use. The limited
scale, size, form and the intended materials, along with restricted views into the site
ensure that the proposal is not detrimental to character or appearance of the Special
Landscape Area or of the Conservation Area. All relevant policies of the UDPR have
been complied with and the application is therefore recommended to Members for
approval subject to conditions.

Background Papers:

Application and history files —

« Planning application - 33/639/04/FU

o Enforcement case - 07/01543/UCU3

o Enforcement case - 06/01359/UOPS2
Certificate of Ownership — signed as applicant.

Page 77



T3 460KOL OO © SISO 200/

NG 9151 5pa) ‘Pocuy, “proy v

MO DN N30 %0 ( Wdowg ) sumossy g pewp
SIVINSNOD) NbISIQ NG

SIVID0SSY AJvH pNNWP]

0G:1

IGI00pRSINDOSSAT VIO

1 U0 X B4z 10 5 PL

_ v ‘ € ‘ 66 _ pioog 2242} Uiog] X 6]
N e Ny s|1od daddn G/ X g7 ON 4

S0 wwOg] 40 54594 0GT X 61
Y61y 00T 2202

sako i 04 g 40 Jako| boumsp

SNOILD3S ANV i/

110 pup ysod J2qui Busixg

NOAYT ALIS

NQE

¥1S7'sQ3 31

“INVIRINROHL ‘STIHANYS "LIORWATIOH U2
STMBVLS Q35040

4 £1870/60

iogiLgw0/60

1440

6otz v

39vev9

8-8 NOILJ3S

"2403pJoy pajodul) pa4ondiuiod 2uoys paysnia Jo
Y44 oG] uo

sdiyo Jaqqn 40 J2ko] Yy} wugZ

00z:1

¥ -¥ NOILJ3S

¥3LT3IHS Q7314 INILSIXI

ONLLSIXI  ONLLSIX3 —_————

@IsiAZd

6007 230 1

20110 UOISIOaQ O} Jojal 5Ll
TONNOD A LD SA331

¥2/6v6 ON bp
0442424 S{DiP o3

0018 MavLs

Q35040 w G0z L LNOAYT3ILIS

X |ipiaq

"2J09pJoY paj.iodus pa4o0duiod 2uojs paysnd Jo
Jakoj wwg/ o} O 40 Jako] 2B0UIDIP Yy} WQG] U0
puos 21j1s P2j0dwod W oG Uo
sdiy J2qqna Jo Jako| yyy wipz

[[oM 2u0LS

/) |

/
/
/
abouayy —
3 ¢ «m
Ajopunog |
[Ddn4npLIby /2145210

N

/
(
|

b X08 35%0H
| v 301430
304 B12¥I) ININUNL
¥2/646 0N 6ap
04 J2f2u S|iD§2p Jo4
20078 31avLS
X08 3540H
Q35040¥d 304 0vés
INDRIVd

[

” 1440 39vdY9
! INLLSIX3 | INILSIX3
i

N3Quv9

¥3L73HS Q1314 INILSIXT

PiDog 221y WOG] X 6]
sjind saddn 6 X 61 ON

540 WwOQBT 40 5450d 0T X G/
4oy ugp]] 22024

104 puo Jsod uaquay Buigsix3

=

054
.

0044

S A

Page 78



/" sandhill
AL Villas

Issues

The Grove

Holly Croft ] —J

o
[

Mayfield House

09/04313/FU

114.9m

EAST PLANS PANEL . ..

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey gn behalf of the Confroller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedings| age h?é

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567

,

&
i3
= CITY COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



reiriery

{

- CI TY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem 13

Originator: Umar Dadhiwala

Tel: 0113 2478175

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
PLANS PANEL EAST

Date: 14" January 2009

Subject: APPLICATION 09/04522/FU — Replacement 5 Bedroom Dwelling at Warren

House, The Ridge, Linton, Leeds.

APPLICANT DATE VALID
Mr. P. Jones 3 November 2009

TARGET DATE
29" December 2009

Electoral Wards Affected:

Harewood

v Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT PERMISSION subject to the specified conditions:

Conditions
1. Time Limit

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved

plans listed in the Plans Schedule.

. Areas Used by Vehicles to be laid out, drained,
. Submission of landscape details.

. Implementation of landscaping scheme.

. Existing trees on site shall be protected during t

O©oONO O1h~W

public open space or for filling and level raising to
for use.

. Sample of walling and roofing materials to be submitted.

surfaced and sealed.

he construction period.

. Details of potential contaminants used within the building to be submitted.
. Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft landscaping,

be tested for contamination and suitability

10. The works to be carried out in accordance with the recommendations made in section 10

of the Bat survey.

11. Planning permission to be obtained before any extensions, garages, or windows (not
shown on the approved plans) are erected or installed.

Page 81



12. A method statement for the management of construction traffic associated with the
approved development to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reasons for approval: It is considered that the proposed house will not appear prominent
or out of place in the street scene nor will it have a detrimental impact upon the amenities of
adjoining residents. The proposal is also similar to a scheme that has already been granted
planning permission at the site but this permission has not yet been implemented. The
application proposal is considered to comply with policies GP5, BD5, T2, H4, LD1 and N24
of the UDP (Review), as well as guidance contained within Neighbourhoods for Living: A
Guide for Residential Design in Leeds and having regard to all other material considerations,
as such the application is recommended for approval.

1.0 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 This application is brought to the Plans Panel at the request of Councillor Rachael
Procter. The Councillor highlights that the proposed height and mass of the property
would result in the dwelling over-dominating the neighbouring property. The
Councilor also raises overlooking concerns resulting from close proximity of the
proposed windows to the neighbouring dwellings.

1.2 In 2007, planning permission was granted for part two storey part first floor front and
side extensions to the host property (ref: 07/07215/FU). This approval represents a
fall back position that has to be given weight as a material consideration. The
proposed dwelling is very similar to a scheme approved in 2007, however this
proposal is in many ways more acceptable in design terms. When compared to the
2007 approval, there is no difference in the footprint of the dwelling, whilst only a
modest 0.4m height difference is evident.

2.0 PROPOSAL:

2.1 In 2007 permission was granted for a part two storey part first floor front and side
extensions to the existing property on the site (ref: 07/07215/FU). This application
seeks full planning permission to demolish the existing dwelling on the site and
replace it with a dwelling which is similar in siting and width. The proposed dwelling
will be approximately 0.4m higher than the approved scheme.

2.2 As part of this application, front dormers were proposed to the main building. It was
considered that the dormers would have resulted in the property appearing
excessive and dominant from the street. Therefore, the applicant was advised to
revise the scheme to show the front dormers omitted from the proposal.

2.3 The proposed two storey dwelling will be traditional in design and will measure 9m
in height and 18.1m by 11.2m in mass. The property will feature three bedrooms at
first floor level and two bedrooms within the roof space. An attached double garage
will be located to the southwestern elevation of the property, adding a further 7.5m
to the width of the dwelling. The garage will feature a hipped roof with dormers to
the front and rear, which will serve a games room proposed within the roof space.
The walls are noted to be of render and stone with details of the final materials and
roof tiles to be agreed.

3.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

Page 82



3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.0

The application relates to a detached dwelling built of artificial stone, set on a private
drive of approximately twenty dwellings. The street features dwellings that are quite
different in style and size. However, the dwellings are all detached and set within
good sized gardens. The Ridge has a significant gradient and the host is sited
toward its highest point. This means that the neighbouring dwelling to the east is
set lower. The open Green Belt adjoins the site to the northwest. The existing
dwelling on the site is part bungalow and part two storey. The dwelling is set back
from the main road and is screened to the north and west by high evergreen
hedging.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:
31/78/98/FU- Two storey side extension (Approved)

07/07215/FU- Alterations including new roof, part two storey, part first floor front and
side extension, open porch to front and new dormer window to front (Approved)

HISTORY OF NEGOTIATIONS:

The original scheme proposed dormers to front elevation of the main building. It was
considered that the proposed dormers will add additional bulk to the roof, resulting
in the property appearing excessive and dominant from the street. Therefore, the
applicant was advised to revise the drawings and omit the front dormers from the
proposed plans.

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

Site Notice posted 4™ November 2009.

Neighbour Notification letters posted 3 November 2009.
Publicity Expiry Date 1% December 2009.

3 letters of support received. The letters highlight that the proposal will enhance the
appearance of the street.

4 Letters of the objections received. Objectors raise issues concerning;

e The recent felling of trees on the site.

e The proposed dormer window over the garage overlooking the neighbouring
dwelling Larchwood.

e The proposed dwelling appearing over-dominant from neighbouring property.

e The proposed dwelling appearing excessive from the streetscene.

e The large vehicles using the street during the construction period will
compromise highway safety and will harm residential amenity by way of noise
and disturbance.

Collingham and Linton Parish Council states that the concern raised by the
objectors, should be taken in to consideration when determining the application.

CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:

Non-statutory:

Page 83



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.0

Highways officer- No objections

Nature Conservation- The Nature Conservation Officer highlights no significant
concerns with regards to the potential harm to the bats that may be using the site.
However, recommends that a condition should be attached to ensure the
development is carried out in accordance with the recommendation contained within
the submitted bat survey.

Landscape Officer — No objections
Contaminated Land — No objections

Statutory:
None

PLANNING POLICIES:

The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS was issued
in May 2008 and includes a broad development strategy for the region, setting out
regional priorities in terms of location and scale of development. Given the strategic
nature of the RSS, it is not considered that there are any policies relevant to the
determination of the current proposal.

Local
Unitary Development Plan Review Policies:

GP5: Seeks to ensure that development proposals resolve detailed planning
considerations, including amenity.

H4: Provisions for residential development.

N13: Requires all new buildings to be of high quality and have regard to character
and appearance of their surroundings.

BDS: States that new buildings should give consideration to both their amenity and
that of their surroundings.

LD1: Landscaping.

T2: Development proposals should not create new, or exacerbate existing, highway
problems.

N24- Developments which adjoin the Green Belt to be adequately assimilated within
the landscape.

Supplementary Planning Guidance

SPG13: Neighbourhoods for Living.

National Planning Policy

Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing.
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development (PPS1).

MAIN ISSUES

e Principle of Development
e Visual Amenity

¢ Residential Amenity
Page 84



10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Highways
Landscaping

Nature Conservation
Public Representation
Conclusion

APPRAISAL

Principle of Development

The application site lies within the Linton Village envelope and is located within the
residential curtilage of Warren House. According to PPS3 ‘Housing’, land within the
envelope of a developed area is classed as ‘previously-developed’ and is
acceptable for housing development subject to all other material planning
considerations.

Visual Amenity

In 2007 planning permission was granted for part two storey part first floor front and
side extensions to the host property (ref: 07/07215/FU). This approval represents a
fall back position that has to be given weight as a material consideration.

The proposed mass and layout of the dwelling will be similar to the approved 2007
extensions scheme on the site, whilst only a modest 0.4m increase is proposed to
the height of the dwelling when compared to the approved scheme. Therefore, it is
not considered that mass and height of the proposal will have a detrimental impact
on the character of the streetscene.

In terms of design, it is acknowledged that the dwelling proposed, although
traditional in design, is considerably different in character and appearance to the
existing dwelling. This is largely due to the change in height, roof form and the
fenestration. However, the streetscene consists of dwellings that are varied in
design and scale, and together with the fact that the extant planning consent on the
site gives approval for a dwelling which is also considerably different in character to
the existing dwelling on the site, it is not considered that the proposed dwelling will
have a detrimental impact on the streetscene.

Owing to the fact that the existing property is part bungalow, part two storey with a
mixture of roof types, it is considered that the existing property has a rather
disjointed appearance and has no significant architectural merit. Therefore, the
proposed dwelling represents a house form that is more balanced and aesthetically
attractive.

The proposed dwelling would be located close to the Green Belt boundary, to
northwest of the site. Policy N24 of the UDPR states that where new development
abut the Green Belt or other open green land, their assimilation into the landscape
must be achieved. It is considered that the existing landscaping along the rear
boundary of the site is adequate to soften the appearance of the proposed dwelling
from the open Green Belt.

It is considered that a condition should be attached, requesting details of the walling
and roofing materials to be submitted and approved. Such a condition will ensure
that the materials used are of good quality and allows the property to tie in with the
character of the street scene.

Page 85



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Residential Amenity

In order to assess the impact of the proposed dwelling on neighbouring residential
amenity, consideration has been given to the potential impact of the proposal from
overshadowing, dominance and overlooking. Consideration has also been given to
the extant planning permission on the site, which has to be given weight as a
material consideration. Therefore, this application is required to be assessed, taking
the view, that the approved scheme is acceptable in terms of its impact on
residential amenity.

Given that the proposed dwelling is similar in mass and position to the scheme
approved on the site and that only a modest 0 .4m increase in the height of the
dwelling is proposed when compared to the approved scheme, it is not considered
that the proposed property represents an increase in the levels overshadowing or
over-dominance, above that would be experienced if the approved scheme on the
site was implemented.

It is considered that the proposed front dormer window over the garage which serve
a games room, will overlook the neighbouring dwelling ‘Larchwood’. Therefore, it is
considered that a condition should be attached to ensure a landscape scheme is
implemented along the southwestern boundary, in order to obstruct views of the
neighbouring dwelling. The landscaping will also soften the appearance of the
dwelling from ‘Larchwood’.

Highways

The Highway Officer does not raise concerns with regards to highway safety or
traffic. However, it is recommended that a condition is attached in order to ensure
that all areas used by vehicles are hard surfaced.

Landscaping

No concerns are raised with regards to the harm to trees and shrubs on the site.
However, a condition should be attached to ensure the trees within the site are
protected during the construction period.

Nature Conservation

A bat survey of the property was carried out in November 2009. The survey
included an internal and external inspection of the building but no bat activity was
recorded due to the time of year. The survey concludes that the presence of a
significant roost is unlikely, however, indication of a feeding or day roost was found
behind a shutter to one of the windows. Such roosts are considered to be of low
conservation value. It is also considered that the presence of a significant roost
cannot be ruled out. Therefore, it is recommended that a condition should be
attached to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
precautionary mitigation measures outlined in Section 10 of the bat survey.

Public Representations

The comments received from the Ward Member and the members of the public

highlights concerns with regards to the excessive scale and height of the proposal,

which it is claimed would result in the proposed dwelling appearing prominent on the

street and over-dominant from neighbouring dwellings. The proposed dwelling is
Page 86



10.15

10.16

10.17

11.0

similar in terms of its layout and mass, to the scheme approved on the site in 2007
whilst, compared to the scheme approved, only a modest 0.4m increase in the
height of the dwelling is proposed. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal will
not have a significant detrimental impact on the character of the street-scene or on
neighbouring residential amenity,

The proposed overlooking issues highlighted have also been discussed in the
appraisal. Only the dormer window above the garage was found to overlook the
neighbouring dwelling ‘Larchwood’. In order to overcome the concern, a condition
requiring adequate screening along the shared boundary has been recommended to
be attached. Apart from the dormer window over the garage, no other windows
were found to directly overlook neighbouring dwellings.

The issues raised with regards to disturbances during the construction period
particularly from the movement of large vehicles, is a concern. It is recommended
that a condition should be attached in order to ensure that a method statement
dealing with the management of construction traffic is submitted, and approved
prior to works commencing on site.

The objectors also highlight that a number of trees have been recently felled within
the site. Given that the trees on the site are not protected by a Tree Preservation
Order and that this street is not within a Conservation Area, the felling of trees within
the site can not be controlled.

CONCLUSION

The proposed dwelling is similar in terms of its mass and layout to the scheme
approved on the site is 2007 and only a 0.4m height difference is evident, when
compared to the approved scheme. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal will
not appear prominent from the street nor will the proposed height and mass of the
dwelling have a detrimental impact on the amenity of the neighbouring dwellings.
Furthermore, given that the dwellings on the street are varied in style and design, it
is not considered that the proposed dwelling, which is traditional in design, will
detract from the character of the street-scene. No significant concerns have been
raised with regards to highways safety or harm to the local bats using the site.
Therefore, it is considered that subject the recommended conditions being
imposed, the application is recommended for approval.

Background Papers:
Planning application file: 09/04522/FU

Certificate of Ownership: Mr Peter Jones

Page 87



C I =)

PNEEETS

8SNOH UBLEA\ 620 AL "ON Bma

Tmi« LON 0Q - ONIMY¥A 03 LVHINIO ¥ILNdWOD w

,
DUIYSHIOA 1SS
uojur]
abpry ey

— 9SNOH UBLBAA ‘3)S

Ueld 8iS  "eplL

3 69ESGL 92210 ‘d/L

SeonPHRY AR Buiping leolydeibodo..
P17 sAsAaAuNg
usploH

—

d36 627 'Aapill ‘Y OIS 26-0G v SNNS
R SII%h

Suiyl

340 uoissiuuad Jnoyim Aued paiy e 0} pansst Jo
40 85N apew ‘psonpoidal aq jou Aew Buimelp sy

h 606060  HN [60'60'60| HS xmd
ﬁ o8Q | PAO | sieQ | umeig .z:L
aeq Ag uonduosaq >wU

J

SIHOWBWOUUO SO ‘wnieq [2ra]

2089S0  :uoHEsLQ PUO
uojEWw.OU| WNjEQ B [0JUCD

g ousnwens 55

e ipeoy sy
e ooy T
kX akabuppoy 3

or o poio
wwneo eeis peioy 05y

T ———

woseLry

Paqe 88

W ®zsv0/60

woooser

wosé8ey

wo068eY

woov vy

ar

-z




09/04522/FU

lestwinds

Ce

Ashmore Rh

Chetnut
House
Springwoad L~
N——— AR

Larchwood

Linton Ris

By

Nithbank

Stanig Howe T

3\’.)9 3

Linton Ridge

Orchard Lodge

Tall Trees
Q 2, T
()
E
\ ?3“ Southernhey

9
EAST PLANS PANEL ...

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL jo0
This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Survey gn behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office. Leeds
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedings| age éé Y N

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567 = CITY COUNCIL




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90



Agenda ltem 14

eed S Originator: P Eggleton
m L Tel:0113 2478000

- CI TY COUNCIL

2

Report of the Chief Planning Officer

PLANS PANEL EAST

Date: 14" January, 2009

Subject: APPLICATION at Easterly Mount, Gipton, Leeds (09/05236/LA) — Residential

development comprising of 39 houses, 2 two bedroom flats over garages and 12 two
bedroom flats in 1 three storey block.

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE
Leeds City Council 01.12.2009 02.03.2010
Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

Gipton & Harehills

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

v Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: DEFER AND DELEGATE to the Chief Planning Officer for
approval, subject to the specified conditions below, and to allow for the expiry of the
public notification period and no adverse representations being received that raise
new issues:

Time limit

Plans agreed

External walling and roofing materials details
Landscaping conditions re. details and implementation
Contamination conditions

Drainage conditions

Home Zone conditions inc landscaping

Parking area surfacing and allocation

Details of carports

Highway materials

10. Boundary treatments adjacent to access points
11. Provision for contractors during construction
12. Mud on road measures

13. Levels details

14. Security measures

CoOoNORWWN =

Page 91



Details of conditions to be deferred and delegated to officers.

Reasons for Approval: The application is considered to comply with the general thrust of
the UDP policies. Whilst it fails to provide contributions towards Education and Public
Transport and does not make a full contribution towards open space provision as required by
UDP Policies and SPG/SPD’s, it would provide 53 (100%) affordable housing and a central
area of open space within the development. The scale of investment in affordable housing,
the use of brownfield land in a sustainable location, the provision of on-site Greenspace, the
high quality of the layout of the development, the bespoke designs of the dwellings, the
sustainable construction methods. The use of a Local Lettings Policy and the use and
training of local labour are considered to outweigh the harm that would result in terms of the
shortfall of financial contributions and any other concerns. As such the application is
considered acceptable.

1.0 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 A previous permission was considered by Panel and was granted on 27 March
2008. That was for a near identical proposal although it allowed for 85% private
housing as part of Phase | of the East and South East Regeneration Initiative
(EASEL). It included 15% affordable housing and contributions towards Education,
Public Transport and Greeenspace.

1.2 Due to the economic downturn the private housing scheme, which was to be
developed by Bellway Homes Ltd in partnership with the Council, is no longer a
viable option. The proposed scheme, the funding for which has been secured by
the Regeneration Team from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), is
therefore the only development option currently available and viable. The proposal
although offering 100% affordable housing does not include any other developer
contributions.

2.0 PROPOSAL:

2.1 The site has permission for a 53 unit housing scheme granted as part of the EASEL
Phase 1 development programme. This proposal differs from that permission in
that the development would be for affordable housing rather than 85% private and
15% affordable; there would be very small increases in floorspace within some of
the houses; properties would be built to higher environmental standards; and the
Home Zone would have minor modifications to reflect the Council’s SPD relating to
road layouts which would improve pedestrian accessibility. Furthermore, the
contributions previously agreed for the private development have not been offered
as part of this 100% affordable housing proposal.

2.2 This application is for 39 houses, 2 two bedroom flats over garages and 12 two
bedroom flats in a three storey block. The proposal would take advantage of grant
funding from the HCA. The funding would be matched by the Council’s prudential
borrowing and would result in a development investment in excess of £7million.

2.3 The grant funding mechanism is the reason why financial contributions are not
being offered. The grant is set by HCA but requires further borrowing which in this
case represents about 50% of the development costs. A requirement of the grant is
that the financing of any further borrowing be covered by income from rentals. The

Page 92



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

overall scheme would therefore be sustainable in the long term in that the cost of
borrowing would be fully met by the rents from the scheme.

The scheme has been fully costed and the Council’s contractor is awaiting
instruction to commence development. The cost of servicing the amount of
borrowing required and the management of the scheme would result in ongoing
costs that would be matched by projected income from rentals. The cost of
additional borrowing to meet any contributions would take the ongoing costs
beyond the projected annual income. The income cannot be increased as the rents
are fixed. Additional borrowing to cover additional costs would therefore result in
the project operating at a loss. This would take it outside the strict requirements of
the grant and as such the grant would be withdrawn. A requirement for additional
funds would therefore jeopardise the development. This proposal seeks to waive
such requirements on the basis that firstly they would prevent development and
secondly the benéefits of the contributions would be dwarfed by the scale of
investment in affordable housing provision which would exceed £7m.

With regard to the previous permission, the overall partnership agreement with
Bellway Homes Ltd required that development would only take place if the
individual sites were predicted to be sufficiently profitable. This was to ensure that
the use of Council owned land for private housing would result in a satisfactory
return to the Council for the exchange of the land so that it could be re-invested in
the area to aid regeneration. This site did not meet this profitability criteria based
on 2007 house prices. Its development was therefore not considered for the first
phase of building and effectively relied upon continued rises in house prices. The
fall in house prices following the permission was not anticipated. The local housing
market would need to first return to and then exceed 2007 house prices before
development could commence. This is not anticipated to be likely within the
timetable of the approved application or the near future. Without the current grant
funded proposal it is unlikely that development would take place on this site in the
foreseeable future and as such no contributions would be forthcoming in any event.

The proposal would represent development on brownfield land which would bring
benefits in terms of resisting other development on Greenfield sites. The grant
funding is dependent on an agreed timetable and as such development would be
complete by March 2011.

The development would involve the employment of two apprentices from the local
area during the construction process. Letting of the properties would be based on a
Local Lettings Policy that has been developed in consultation with local Ward
Members.

The original EASEL proposals for market housing and the layouts and designs were
subject to considerable local consultation. Three public exhibitions were held;
sessions with local Councillors and community groups were undertaken;
questionnaires were distributed and returned; and publicity leaflets distributed. With
regard to this site no comments were received during the original application
process. As part of this application normal publicity was undertaken for a major
development. In addition, leaflet drops were made to 400 local houses and the
plans displayed in three local schools between 4 and 7 January. Details of the
public response to the proposal will be reported at Panel.

The dwellings would be set around a central area of Greenspace. The layout would

remain identical to that approved by Panel in 2008. It would provide a high quality

environment which has been designed using bespoke house designs. Security and
Page 93



3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

7.0

7.1

accessibility issues have been a key element of the design process from
conception. The materials would reflect those already in use on Site 5 and 7 which
have proved successful in achieving a high quality environment. In addition, the
development would be built to Sustainable Homes Level 3 standard.

SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

This site was previously two separate housing areas. Development along Easterly
Mount followed the general linear form of the road with flatted buildings beyond
wide grass verges on both sides of the road. The area off St Wilfrid’s Avenue is at
a lower level and had semi-detached and terraces of four dwellings grouped around
a cul-de-sac known as Easterly Square.

The site was cleared several years ago. The reasons for clearance were a
combination of the properties being no longer sustainable due to the level of
investment required to bring them up to standard and a lack of demand for certain
property types particularly the flats. Both parts of the site are now laid to grass
although the road that formed the cul-de-sac remains.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

07/01007/FU — Sites 1 and 2 - 63 dwelling houses and associated access works approved
27/3/2008

PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

None

CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:

Environment Agency: Recommend conditions and informatives.
Yorkshire Water: Recommend conditions and informatives.

Non Statutory Consultations:

Drainage Officer: Recommends conditions.

Contamination: Recommends conditions

Highways: Recommends conditions and continuing detailed highway design work to allow
for adoption.

PLANNING POLICIES:

The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS includes a
broad development strategy for the region, setting out regional priorities in terms of
location and scale of development and includes the following policies:

The RSS for Yorkshire and Humber adopted in May 2008.
YH1 Growth and change will be managed to achieve sustainable development
YH2 Need to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

Page 94



YH7 Location of development - This identifies the need for a sequential
approach giving first priority to the re-use of previously developed land and buildings
and making effective use of existing transport infrastructure and capacity.

H2, B2 Indicates that housing development on brownfield sites should be
prioritised.

T Identifies aims for personal travel reduction and modal shift.

Local — Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006) Policies:
H3 Phasing of housing sites

H4 Housing upon unallocated sites

H11-13 Affordable housing

H21 Need for Greenspace

N2 Need for Greenspace

N4 Requirement for Greenspace

N12 New development design considerations

N13 Building design

N24 Assimilate development into adjoining Greenspace

N25 Boundary treatments of new developments

T2 Highways Safety

T5: Satisfactory and secure access and provision for pedestrians and cyclists.
T6: Seeks to ensure satisfactory access for disabled users.

T7A: Seeks secure cycle parking facilities

T24 Parking requirements

LD1 Landscaping

GP2 Development of vacant/underused sites

GP5 General development requirements

BD2: Design and siting of new buildings should complement and enhance
surroundings.

BD3: Seeks to achieve access for all.

BD4: Seeks to minimise the impact of plant and machinery.

BD5: Satisfactory level of amenity for occupants and surroundings.

SPGs Neighbourhoods For Living: A Guide for Residential Design; Greenspace
SPDs Community Safety; Public Transport; Street Design; Biodiversity.

National Planning Guidance

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development, PPG3 Housing; PPG13 Transport;
PPG17 Sport and Recreation

MAIN ISSUES
Principle of Development.
Developer contributions.
Developer contributions Analysis.

APPRAISAL

8.1

Principle of Development
The principle of development has been accepted by the previous permission. The

land was formerly housing which has been cleared and therefore the proposal
makes a positive contribution to achieving housing targets on brownfield land.

Page 95



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

The land has been vacant now for a number of years and although grassed does
not contribute positively to the appearance of the area. The existing permission is
now extremely unlikely to be implemented and as such this cleared site has little
prospect of being developed without this proposal.

The nature of the grant funding requires that the build programme is specified and
the project must be implemented in accordance with this schedule. This proposal
will therefore ensure that the development is commenced immediately and
completed by March 2011. This is a significant benefit of the application given the
current uncertainty over development projects.

The approved scheme represents a very high quality design and layout. The
Greenspace would provide significant enhancements to the character and
appearance of the area. The buildings have bespoke designs developed to
integrate into and to complement the area. The materials have been carefully
considered as part of the on going development of EASEL Sites 5 and 7 and have
proved very successful in providing attractive and distinctive dwellings on these
sites.

The Home Zone concept is common to most of the EASEL sites. It provides for
attractive and safe shared areas with maximum speeds of 10 mph. One additional
and important feature of the layouts is the use of feature buildings set within the
structure of each site. These are located to frame and add interest to key views
into and within the sites and to enhance prominent corners. The buildings retain
the designs of the surrounding development but have different materials that would
add character and interest. The materials/colours for all the various character
areas and feature buildings are deliberately innovative in order to create a high
profile, high quality environment that would assist in raising the profile and
distinctiveness of the area and the overall regeneration objectives of the EASEL
initiative.

The sites have been designed to accommodate a refuse vehicle and its
requirements for turning. Provision for storage of bins and cycles would be within
the curtilage of each dwelling as required by the Code for Sustainable Homes.
There are dedicated storage facilities for the blocks of flats and also for the flats
above garages.

The original EASEL concept sought to attract new development and investment into
the area. This would be achieved. It was also an objective to use Council owned
land for private development in order to achieve profit that would be re-invested into
the local area to further assist with regeneration. This would not be achieved by
this proposal. The programme also sought to initiate a shift in tenure by introducing
additional private housing. This would also not be achieved. Although some of the
regeneration objectives would not be met, the introduction of this level of
investment (over £7million) in a new high quality development which would provide
affordable housing on brownfield land is considered to outweigh any concerns in
this regard and overall is considered to represent a very positive contribution
towards the regeneration initiative in this area.

Developer Contributions

Greenspace

Open space provision is required by the Greenspace relating to new housing
development SPG for all sites of 10 units or more. This is provided on site although
Page 96



8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

it does not achieve the full area required. The shape of the site prohibits larger
provision as this would result in the Greenspace bounding the existing rear gardens
of properties which would result in security concerns. Management of this
Greenspace would be by ENE Homes who would also manage the housing. The
shortfall in Greenspace would normally be compensated for by an off-site
contribution which would go towards new or improved provision in the area.

Education Contributions

A contribution towards the provision of education facilities in the area is normally
required for development in excess of 50 units. Although this site is for 53 units,
only 39 are family units that would generate demand for education provision.
Education Leeds have however requested that contributions be paid for these 39
units. This would amount to a payment of £185,788.

This contribution is justified by Education Leeds on the basis of their projected
school places provision and projected demand. In primary education there is
expected to be an over supply of 9 places in 2010 but this is anticipated to become
a deficit by 2011 of 153 and this deficit is predicted to increase over the following
three years. With regard to Secondary School places it is estimated that there will
be a small oversupply of places at Primrose High School until 2013 but for the
following two years a small deficit. For Roundhay School Technology College there
would be a deficit of 71 places in 2010 which would remain although this would
reduce to 15 over the 5 year period.

Public Transport Contributions

As the site exceeds 50 units a public transport contribution would normally be
expected. Metro have requested that MetroCards be provided for the future
occupants. The financial requirement for such provision is considered to be
£20,584 (plus a possible increase of no more than 50% should there be any rise in
MetroCard costs). A contribution towards strategic public transport provision would
also be expected for housing developments of this size.

Affordable Housing

A scheme of this size would be expected to provide 15% of the dwellings as
affordable dwellings to be managed by a Registered Landlord. This would
represent 8 units. The proposal is to provide all 53 units as affordable housing that
would be managed by East North East Homes on behalf of the Council.

Developer Contribution Analysis

Executive Board agreed on 13" February 2009 that S106 contributions for
residential developments of 50 units or less, which consist solely of affordable units,
could be waived due to exceptional circumstances surrounding these types of
developments given the current financial climate and to ensure that these 100%
affordable housing schemes remain deliverable.

This proposal exceeds the 50 unit threshold first anticipated by the Executive

Board. However, Executive Board agreed to the funding mechanism for this

development on 4 November 2009. The funding mechanism does not allow for

additional costs. The borrowing required to match the HCA funding has to be

financed by projected rental incomes which are fixed. Additional finance costs

would therefore result in the scheme becoming unviable and not self sustaining and
Page 97



8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

9.0

as such it would not qualify for the HCA grant. As incomes from the scheme cannot
be increased, additional costs cannot be sustained.

A number of sites have recently been given permission for development without the
need for contributions in accordance with the February 2009 Executive Board
decision. Although this site exceeds the threshold by three, the same principles
apply to this proposal as it represents 100% affordable housing and is not for profit.

It is considered that the £7million of affordable housing provision (53 units plus 10
on St Wilfrid’s Avenue) compensates for the lack of contributions. The lack of
provision of financial contributions would not set an undesirable precedent as it is
justified on the provision of 100% affordable housing. Any similar proposal,
although more difficult to resist would make a significant contribution toward
affordable housing provision which is a key objective.

The actual impact of not providing contributions can be considered. Education
would have a theoretical deficit in funding. As Education Leeds is part of the
Council and the monies to pay for this contribution would have to be sourced from
Council reserves or borrowing if it could be found, there would be no overall impact
on the Council’s overall resources, it would be an internal matter for the Council.

Furthermore, the allocation of properties would be based on a Local Letting Policy.
Future residents in many cases would already be placing demands on education
provision in the area. Private housing could reasonable be expected to generate
new demand.

With regard to Metro’s requirements the residents of these houses would not
benefit from free MetroCards. Although this reduces the drive to encourage a
change in transport patterns, these residents would be in a similar position to new
residents in the majority of existing houses and new houses on sites of less than 50
units.

With regard to Greenspace, this site would provide an attractive area of open space
which would be well integrated into the housing area and benefit from good general
surveillance. The lack of additional contributions would be to the detriment of wider
improvements but this money would not be forthcoming in any event if no
development were to take place which would be the likely outcome.

Overall, although the importance of the normally required contributions should not
be under stated, the benefits of new investment in this area and the provision of a
large number of affordable houses, which is a key Council objective, is considered
to outweigh the negative aspects of a lack of payment of such contributions.

The reduction in new private house building throughout the Council’s area as a
result of the recession has clear implications for affordable housing provision as this
is reliant on the completion of such developments. This proposal would make a
significant contribution towards the current shortfall in affordable housing provision.
The 63 units on this and the St Wilfrid’s Avenue site would provide the equivalent
amount of affordable housing in this area as a private development of 430 new
units. This scale of development is considered to outweigh any contribution
shortfalls.

CONCLUSION

Page 98



9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

10.0

10.1

Consideration has been given to all material planning considerations. The scheme
would not be viable and would not be implemented if financial contributions were to
be required. Without this development the site would be likely to remain vacant for
the foreseeable future.

The proposal would bring significant benefits in terms of inward investment to the
area. It would make a major contribution to affordable housing provision. There
would be other significant benefits including the use of brownfield land in a
sustainable location; the provision of on-site Greenspace; the high quality of the
layout of the development; the bespoke designs of the dwellings; the sustainable
construction methods; the use of a Local Lettings Policy; and the use and training of
local labour.

It is considered that the benefits of the proposal far outweigh the lack of
contributions that would be generated by a private development, even if such an
option was likely to emerge. As a private development would be unlikely to return a
profit, such contributions would not be likely to be forthcoming in any event.
Subject to the appropriate conditions it is recommended that the application be
accepted.

As the end of the consultation process coincides with the date of the Panel, the
recommendation seeks the delegation of the decision to the Chief Planning Officer
following consideration of any new representation prior to the deadline for
representations.

Background Papers:

Application and history files.
Certificate A signed by the applicant declaring that all land is owned by applicant.

Page 99



EASTERLY MoUNT e o
1o

09/05236/LA /)

S

o

EAST PLANS PA

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHICS & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
n behalf of Sinedod(rollerof Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

This map is based upon the Ordnance Survey's Digital data with the permission of the Ordnance Surve
(c) Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may led to prosecution or civil proceedinﬁage

(c) Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No. - 100019567




reiriery

{

- CI TY COUNCIL

Agenda ltem 15

Originator: P Eggleton

Tel:0113 2478000

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
PLANS PANEL EAST
Date: 14" January, 2009

Subject: APPLICATION at St Wilfrid’s Avenue,

Harehills, Leeds (09/05235/LA) -

Residential development comprising of 10 three bedroom semi-detached houses.

APPLICANT DATE VALID
Leeds City Council 01.12.2009

TARGET DATE
02.03.2010

Electoral Wards Affected:
Gipton & Harehills

v Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

Narrowing the Gap

RECOMMENDATION: DEFER AND DELEGATE

approval, subject to the specified conditions below, and to allow for the expiry of the
public notification period and no adverse representations being received that raise

new issues:

to the Chief Planning Officer for

Time limit
Plans agreed

Contamination conditions

Drainage conditions

Parking area surfacing and allocation
Mud on road measures

Levels details

N WWN =

Details of conditions to be deferred and delegated

External walling and roofing materials details
Landscaping conditions re. details and implementation

to officers.

Reasons for Approval: The application is considered to comply with the general thrust of

the UDP policies. Whilst it fails to provide a contribution towards open space provision as

required by UDP Policies and the Greenspace SPG, it would provide 10 (100%) affordable

houses. An area of open space would be provided within the nearby development at
Page 101



Easterly Mount. The scale of investment in affordable housing, the use of brownfield land in
a sustainable location, the high quality of the layout and design of the dwellings, the
sustainable construction methods, the use of a Local Lettings Policy and the use and training
of local labour are considered to outweigh the harm that would result in terms of the shortfall
of the financial contribution towards Greenspace and any other concerns. As such the
application is considered acceptable.

1.0 INTRODUCTION:

1.1 A previous permission granted on 27 March 2008 and relating to this site and
Easterly Mount, was for a near identical proposal but for market housing. That was
as part of Phase | of the East and South East Leeds regeneration Initiative (EASEL)
and was also considered by Panel. This proposal complements the previous
agenda item relating to an application for 53 units at Easterly Mount, Gipton. Due to
the economic downturn the private housing scheme, which was to be developed by
Bellway Homes Ltd in partnership with the Council, is now not a viable option. The
proposed scheme, the grant for which has been secured by the Regeneration Team
from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA), is therefore the only development
option currently available and viable.

2.0 PROPOSAL:

2.1 The site has permission for 10 houses as part of the EASEL Phase 1 development
programme. That permission was for private housing whilst this would be for 100%
affordable housing. In addition, the houses would be very slightly increased in
floorspace to meet HCA house size standards. This would not however alter the
layout.

3.0 SITE AND SURROUNDINGS:

3.1 This site was previously a housing area. It was cleared several years ago. The
reasons for clearance was a combination of the properties being no longer
sustainable due to the level of investment required to bring them up to standard and
a lack of demand for certain property types, particularly flats. The site is now laid to
grass.

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

4.1 07/01007/FU — Sites 1 and 2 - 63 dwelling houses and associated access works approved
27/3/2008

5.0 PUBLIC/LOCAL RESPONSE:

5.1 None

6.0 CONSULTATIONS RESPONSES:
Environment Agency: Recommend conditions and informatives.
Yorkshire Water: Recommend conditions and informatives.

Non Statutory Consultations:

Page 102



7.0

7.1

Drainage Officer: Recommends conditions.
Contamination: Recommends conditions

Highways: Recommends conditions.

PLANNING POLICIES:

The development plan comprises the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 (RSS) and
the adopted Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006). The RSS includes a
broad development strategy for the region, setting out regional priorities in terms of
location and scale of development and includes the following policies:

The RSS for Yorkshire and Humber adopted in May 2008.

YH1 Growth and change will be managed to achieve sustainable development
YH2 Need to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

YH7 Location of development - This identifies the need for a sequential
approach giving first priority to the re-use of previously developed land and buildings
and making effective use of existing transport infrastructure and capacity.

H2, B2 Indicates that housing development on brownfield sites should be
prioritised.

T Identifies aims for personal travel reduction and modal shift.

Local — Leeds Unitary Development Plan (Review 2006) Policies:
H3 Phasing of housing sites

H4 Housing upon unallocated sites

H11-13 Affordable housing

H21 Need for Greenspace

N2 Need for Greenspace

N4 Requirement for Greenspace

N12 New development design considerations

N13 Building design

N24 Assimilate development into adjoining Greenspace

N25 Boundary treatments of new developments

T2 Highways Safety

T5: Satisfactory and secure access and provision for pedestrians and cyclists.
T6: Seeks to ensure satisfactory access for disabled users.

T7A: Seeks secure cycle parking facilities

T24 Parking requirements

LD1 Landscaping

GP2 Development of vacant/underused sites

GP5 General development requirements

BD2: Design and siting of new buildings should complement and enhance
surroundings.

BD3: Seeks to achieve access for all.

BD4: Seeks to minimise the impact of plant and machinery.

BD5: Satisfactory level of amenity for occupants and surroundings.

SPG - Neighbourhoods For Living: A Guide for Residential Design; Greenspace
SPDs - Community Safety; Public Transport; Street Design; Biodiversity.

National Planning Guidance

PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development,
Page 103



PPS3 Housing;
PPG13 Transport;
PPG17 Sport and Recreation

MAIN ISSUES

Principle of Development
Greenspace

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

APPRAISAL
Principle of Development

The principle of development has been accepted by the previous permission. The
land was formerly housing/flats which has been cleared and therefore the proposal
makes a positive contribution to achieving housing targets on brownfield land.

The land has been vacant now for a number of years and although grassed does
not contribute positively to the appearance of the area. The existing permission is
now extremely unlikely to be implemented and as such this cleared site has little
prospect of being developed without this proposal.

The nature of the grant funding requires that the build programme is specified and
the project must be implemented in accordance with this schedule. This proposal
will therefore ensure that the development is commenced immediately and
completed by March 2011. This is a significant benefit of the application given the
current uncertainty over development projects.

The layout would remain identical to that approved by Panel in 2008. It would
provide bespoke house designs along a dedicated service road. The materials
would reflect those already in use on Site 5 and 7 which have proved successful in
achieving a high quality environment. In addition, the development would be built to
Sustainable Homes Level 3 standard.

The site has been designed to accommodate a refuse vehicle. Provision for
storage of bins and cycles would be within the curtilage of each dwelling as
required by the Code for Sustainable Homes.

The development in conjunction with the Easterly Mount proposal would involve the
employment of two apprentices from the local area during the construction process.
Letting of the properties would be based on a Local Lettings Policy that has been
developed in consultation with local Ward Members.

The original EASEL proposals for market housing and the layouts and designs were
subject to considerable local consultation. Three public exhibitions were held;
sessions with local Councilors’ and community groups were undertaken;
questionnaires were distributed and returned; and publicity leaflets distributed. With
regard to this site no comments were received during the original application
process. As part of this application normal publicity was undertaken for a major
development. In addition, leaflet drops were made to 400 local houses and the
plans displayed in three local schools between 4 and 7 January. Details of the
public response to the proposal will be reported at Panel.

Page 104



8.8

8.9

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

The proposal would take advantage of grant funding from the HCA as described in
the report relating to Easterly Mount. A proposal for ten houses would not normally
attract a requirement for any developer contributions other than Greenspace and no
such contributions are proposed in this case.

Greenspace

Open space provision is required by the Greenspace relating to new housing
development SPG for all sites of 10 units or more. This is not provided . The
shortfall in Greenspace would normally be compensated for by an off-site
contribution which would go towards new or improved provision in the area. The
provision of this contribution would make the development unviable as fully
explained in the Easterly Mount report. A new Greenspace would be provided on
the nearby Easterly Mount development.

CONCLUSION

Consideration has been given to all material planning considerations. The scheme
would bring many significant benefits in terms of inward investment to the area and
make a contribution to affordable housing provision. Without this development the
site would be likely to remain vacant for the foreseeable future bringing no benefit to
the area and stalling the regeneration initiatives. It is considered that the benefits of
the proposal far outweigh the concern with regard to the lack of developer
contributions towards Greenspace. Subject to appropriate conditions it is
recommended that development would be acceptable and would make a positive
contribution to the area.

As the end of the consultation process coincides with the date of the Panel, the
recommendation seeks the delegation of the decision to the Chief Planning Officer
following consideration of any new representations made prior to the deadline.

Background Papers:

Application and history files.
Certificate A signed by the applicant declaring that all land is owned by applicant.

Page 105



v © ’,"’
8 TN
Lo /;"’ ‘396/’
Y - >, -
L et 511‘/,
e . ’,’/ L
. N, /‘,‘ ’,,'
\ - e -
\\ /"" Qq
. ;
R I

. “ , P

PRODUCED BY COMMUNICATIONS, GRAPHIC
This map is l_)ased upon the_: Or_dn_ance Survey's Digitz_al data with the permission

S & MAPPING, LEEDS CITY COUNCIL
of the Ordn: If of optroller of Her Majest

ance Surv n behalf of the
ight and may led to prosecution or civil proceedin$ é
i il icence No. - 100019567 age

y's Stati y Off




Agenda Item 16

I eed S Originator:  Helen Miller
m Tel: 0113 2478132

- CI TY COUNCIL

Report of the Chief Planning Officer
PLANS PANEL EAST
Date: 14" January 2010

Subject: Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document Policy Position
Report (Preferred Options)

APPLICANT DATE VALID TARGET DATE
N/A N/A N/A

Electoral Wards Affected: Specific Implications For:

All Equality and Diversity

Community Cohesion

x Ward Members consulted Narrowing the Gap
(referred to in report)

RECOMMENDATION: To receive a presentation on the content of the Natural Resources
and Waste DPD Policy Position Report and to make comments as part of the consultation
process.

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 Development Plan Panel Members agreed to release the Natural Resources and
Waste Development Plan Document (DPD) Policy Position Report on 13" October
2009, as the basis for informal public consultation. The consultation runs for 6 weeks
commencing on 18" January 2010.

1.2  The Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document (NRWDPD) is part
of the new Local Development Framework. The Policy Position Report sets out the
Council’s preferred options for planning policies relating to minerals, renewable
energy, water resources ( including flood risk), air quality and waste. It aims to help
us use our natural resources in a more efficient way.

Page 107



2.0

2.1

3.0

3.1

3.2

4.0

4.1

4.2

PURPOSE:

This report and accompanying presentation are intended to brief Members of the
Plans Panel on the content of the Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan
Document (DPD) Policy Position Report and provide opportunity for Members to
make immediate comments. In addition, the briefing should equip Members to be
able to make further considered written comments during the consultation period if
they so wish.

BACKGROUND:

The Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document is currently being
prepared and is a significant part of the Leeds Local Development Framework (LDF).
This DPD aims to provide an integrated approach to managing natural resources
within Leeds, to ensure that they are used in the most efficient way and to give an
indication of how Leeds will manage its waste now and in the future until 2026. This
DPD (and supporting material) has been subjected to “Issues and Alternative
Options” public consultation (May - June 2008). Following consideration of the
comments received and further technical work, Jacobs (Strategic Design Alliance)
and City Council officers (via a Technical Steering Group), have developed this
‘Policy Position’ report.

Within the context of the City Council’s Statement of Community Involvement, a
programme of consultation has been developed. This includes the creation of
consultation and display material, the hosting of exhibitions and “drop-in-sessions”,
outreach contact with minority groups and the use of the City Council’s web site. We
are also notifying a wide range of stakeholders, neighbouring local authorities and
Parish Councils.

MAIN ISSUES:

This DPD will set out where land is needed to enable us to manage resources, like
minerals, energy, water and waste, over the next 15 years and identifies specific
actions which will help us use our natural resources in a more efficient way.
Planning policies are used to control and encourage development patterns to:

> Ensure responsible use of natural resources such as minerals, water and
energy;

> Predict future pressures on resources, such as climate change and increased
housing growth, and plan for these by reducing flood risk, improving air quality
and increasing renewable energy provision;

> Ensure that sufficient sites are provided to enable us to manage our waste;

> Increase waste recycling and processing so that less waste goes to landfill;

> Encourage more use of those resources that don’t run out, such as solar and
wind energy.

LAND USE

In order to improve air quality and reduce carbon emissions we need to make the
most of opportunities for alternative transport from road. To support this, where
there are railway sidings and canal wharves which are, or could be, used for mineral
and waste activities, it is proposed to safeguard them for that purpose. This helps to
reduce the extent to which bulky materials have to be transported by road.

Page 108



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

These sites are shown as B2 sites on the attached Maps A1 and A2

MINERALS

To ensure that we have sufficient mineral reserves we propose to safeguard existing
mineral sites to make the most of current workings and reduce pressure for new
workings. Safeguarded mineral sites are shown as B1 sites on the attached Maps A1
and A2.

To ensure that we have sufficient mineral resources to last for the next 15 years we
propose to identify Mineral Safeguarding Areas where the land will be protected from
development that would prevent future quarrying and where mineral operators will be
expected to look for resources should the need arise. Mineral Safeguarding Areas
are shown as B4 sites on the attached Maps A1 and A2.

WATER RESOURCES

We intend to require all developments to include measures to improve their water
efficiency and deal with sources of wastewater. To help manage flood risk we
propose planning policy that:

> Allows space for flooding by preventing most types of development in areas defined

as ‘functional flood plain’

> Avoids inappropriate development in high flood risk areas wherever possible

Controls development in locations that could be at risk of rapid water inundation
should flood defences fail
Requires an assessment of flood risk for any development (the assessment will be
in proportion to the development size and flood risk)
Reduces surface water runoff in new developments.

AIR QUALITY

We intend to include a policy to require all new developments to include measures
to improve air quality (commensurate with the scale of the development).

We are investigating whether it would be beneficial to create Low Emission Zones in
some areas of the District. These would be areas where the more polluting vehicles
would not be permitted.

ENERGY

The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) sets targets for installed, grid-connected
renewable energy provision in Leeds. We have set out how we think the RSS
targets might be met from different sources of renewable energy in the District. We
have included a map of wind speeds which indicates that there are areas in the
District where there is potential for wind energy generation to be viable and
alongside this we have included a criteria based policy which gives an indication of
the factors which will be considered when wind energy applications are submitted.
We have also made a commitment to the setting up of an Energy Service Company
in Leeds which will act as a delivery vehicle for low carbon projects.

WASTE

We want Leeds to be self sufficient so that the District has sufficient waste
management facilities and sites to manage all the waste it produces. This means

Page 109



5.0

5.1

increasing the overall waste management capacity to meet this need (i.e. waste
collection, transfer, sorting and treatment facilities). We intend to do this by
safeguarding existing waste sites across the District (shown as sites C1 to C5 on
Maps A1 and A2), providing a limited number of strategic sites for larger facilities in
the industrial areas of the Aire Valley (shown as E sites on Maps A1 and A2) and
identifying where there are existing industrial estates that have potential for more
waste related activities to take place (shown as F sites on Maps A1 and A2).

NEXT STEPS:
Following informal consultation on the Policy Position document, a “Publication”

draft of the DPD, will be prepared and this will be subjected to further consultation
prior to submission to the Planning Inspectorate for Examination and then Adoption.

Background Papers:
Natural Resources and Waste DPD — Policy Position Report (and associated documents)

Page 110



	Agenda
	Site visit letter
	6 Minutes
	7 Application 09/00541/FU - Rear of Bryn, Winton House and Towerhurst, The Avenue Collingham LS22
	8 Application 09/01462/FU - Peel Street/ Melbourne Street Morley LS27
	Melbourne Street additional docs

	9 Application 09/02871/FU - Churchside Villas Methley LS26
	10 Application 09/04229/FU - Oaktree House 9 Blackmoor Lane LS17
	11 Application 09/04286/FU - 164 Ring Road Halton LS15
	12 Application 09/04313/FU - Holly Croft Sandhills Thorner LS14
	13 Application 09/04522/FU - Warren House The Ridge Linton LS22
	14 Application 09/05236/LA - Easterley Mount Gipton
	15 Application 09/05235/LA - St Wilfrids Avenue Harehills
	16 Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document Policy Position Report (Preferred Options)

